
 
Agenda 

College Station City Council 
Workshop Meeting 

Thursday, November 09, 2006 3:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 
1. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on items listed on the consent 

agenda.  
 
2. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a report given by Council 

Members Lynn McIlhaney and Chris Scotti on the National League of Cities 
Leadership Summit held in September in Colorado Springs, Colorado.  Topics of 
discussion shall include citizen involvement, ethics in leadership, and governance. 

 
3. Presentation, possible action and discussion on the outside agency funding policy. 

 
4. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future agenda items: A Council 

Member may inquire about a subject for which notice has not been given.  A 
statement of specific factual information or the recitation of existing policy may 
be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on 
an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 
 

5. Council Calendars 
 
 
 Nov. 12 Veteran’s Day Ceremony at Veteran’s Park 2:00 p.m. 
 Nov. 13 International Education Week 2006 KickOff – Palace 

Theatre – Main Street – Bryan – 11:00 a.m. - Noon 
 Nov. 15 Leadership Brazos Government Day 7:30 a.m. Breakfast at 

Chamber of Commerce, then Program at City of Bryan 
 Nov. 18 Employee Banquet 6:00 p.m. – 10:00 p.m. – Brazos Center 
 Nov. 20 Intergovernmental Committee Meeting – City of Bryan – 

Noon 
 Nov. 20 Council Workshop and Regular Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
 Nov. 21 Transportation Committee Meeting – 4:30 p.m. – 

Administrative Conference Room 
 Nov. 23-24 City Offices Closed for Thanksgiving Holiday 
 Dec. 6 – 9 NLC 83rd Congress of Cities Conference – Reno, NV. 

1



 
6. Discussion, review and possible action regarding the following meetings:  

Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, 
Cemetery Committee, City Center, CSISD/City Joint Meeting, Design 
Review Board, Fraternal Partnership, Historic Preservation Committee, 
Interfaith Dialogue Association, Intergovernmental Committee and School 
District, Joint Relief Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, 
Making Cities Livable Conference,  Metropolitan Planning Organization, 
Outside Agency Funding Review, Parks and Recreation Board, Planning 
and Zoning Commission, Sister City Association, TAMU Student Senate,  
Research Valley Partnership, Regional Transportation Committee for 
Council of Governments, Transportation Committee, Wolf Pen Creek 
Oversight Committee, Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board, Zoning Board of 
Adjustments, (see attached posted notices for subject matters). 

 
7. Executive Session will immediately follow the workshop meeting in the 

Administrative Conference Room. 
 

Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071}; possible action  The City Council 
may seek advice from its attorney regarding a pending and contemplated litigation subject or 
settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  Litigation is an ongoing process and 
questions may arise as to a litigation tactic or settlement offer, which needs to be discussed with 
the City Council.  Upon occasion the City Council may need information from its attorney as to 
the status of a pending or contemplated litigation subject or settlement offer or attorney-client 
privileged information.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be 
in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 
 
a. TCEQ Docket No. 2002-1147-UCR, Applications of Brushy Water Supply and College 

Station (Westside/Highway 60) 
b. TCEQ Docket No. 2003-0544MWD, Application of Nantucket, Ltd. 
c. TXU Lone Star Gas Rate Request. 
d. Cause No. 03-002098-CV-85, Brazos County, College Station v. Wellborn Special Utility 

District 
e. Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 

Division, 
 College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn Special Utility District 
f. Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 

Division, JK Development v. College Station 
g. GUD No. 9530 – Gas Cost Prudence Review, Atmos Energy Corporation 
h. GUD No. 9560 – Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate increases, Atmos 

Energy Corporation  
i. Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed Intervention 

7/6/05) 
j. Cause No. 06-000703-CV-85, Patricia Moore, et al. v. Ross Stores, Inc., City of 

College Station, et al. 
k. Possible settlement water CCN with Wellborn 
l. Possible settlement of sewer CCN issue 
m. Legal aspects of Lease Agreements for No. 4 Water Well and possible purchase of 

or lease of another water site from City of Bryan 

2



n. C.C.N. Issue for Sewer & Water regarding possible overlaps by City of College 
Station and City of Bryan 

 
 
Personnel {Gov’t Code Section 551.074}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer.  After executive session discussion, any final action or 
vote taken will be in public.  The following public officer(s) may be discussed: 
 
1.  Judge Ed Spillane Evaluation 
 
 
Economic Incentive Negotiations {Gov’t Code Section 551.087}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate on commercial or financial information that the City 
Council has received from a business prospect that the City Council seeks to have locate, 
stay or expand in or near the city with which the City Council in conducting economic 
development negotiations may deliberate on an offer of financial or other incentives for a 
business prospect.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will 
be in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 
 

1. Data Center 
2. Proposed city convention center and associated privately developed hotel. 

 
Competitive Matter {Gov’t Code Section 551.086}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate, vote, or take final action on a competitive matter in closed 
session.  The City Council must make a good faith determination, by majority vote of the City 
Council, that the matter is a Competitive Matter.  A “Competitive Matter” is a utility-related 
matter that the City Council determines is related to the City of College Station’s Electric Utility 
Competitive Activity, including commercial information, which if disclosed would give 
advantage to competitors or prospective competitors.  The following is a general representation of 
the subject(s) to be considered as a competitive matter. 
 

1. Assignment of Power Sale Contract 
2. Possible electric service territory adjustment 

 
8. Final Action on executive session, if necessary.  
 
9. Adjourn.    
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

_______________________________ 
City Manager  

 
Notice is hereby given that a Workshop Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas will be held on the November 9, 2006 at 3:00 p.m. at the City Hall 

3



Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following subjects 
will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda 
Posted this 6th day of November, at 2:00 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

____________________________ 
City Secretary 

 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on November 6, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official board at the College Station City Hall 
on the following date and time:  _______________________ by 
___________________________. 
 
    Dated this _____day of _______________, 2006. 
    CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

By____________________________________ 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the ______day of _________________, 
___________________Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas   
My commission expires:_________ 
This building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov.  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 

4

http://www.cstx.gov
http://www.cstx.gov


Agenda 
College Station City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, November 09, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chamber, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
10. Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence requests, presentation by 

International Students from Costa Rica 
 

Hear Visitors:  Any citizen may address the City Council on any item which does 
not appear on the posted Agenda.  Registration forms are available in the lobby 
and at the desk of the City Secretary.  This form should be completed and 
delivered to the City Secretary by 6:45 p.m.  Please limit remarks to three 
minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal that you have 
thirty seconds remaining so that you may conclude your remarks.  The City 
Council will receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the 
issue on a future agenda.  Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the 
City Manager. 
 

Consent Agenda 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent or regular agenda item not 
posted as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s 
reading of the agenda item.  Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk 
of the City Secretary.  The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward 
to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will please state their name and address for 
the record and provided three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to 
signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.     
 

Vision Statement II – Parks and Leisure Services 
Professionals providing a wide range of leisure, recreational, educational, and cultural 

opportunities. 
 

11.1 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an amendment to an 
Interlocal Agreement with the Texas A&M University Department of 
Atmospheric Sciences to place an air quality monitoring station in Lick Creek 
Park. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



Vision Statement I - Core Services   
Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 

through innovation and planning. 
 
 
11.2 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of the 2006 Property 

Tax Roll in the amount of $17,811,835.17.  
 
11.3 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the purchase of seven (7) police 

motorcycles from Independence Harley Davidson of College Station for the 
amount of $140,337.26.  Bid Number 07-10. 

 
11.4 Presentation, discussion, and possible action on approval of minutes for City 

Council Workshop and Regular Meeting, October 23, 2006.   
 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda item not posted 
as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of 
the agenda item.  The Mayor will recognize you to come forward to speak for or against 
the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record and allowed three 
minutes. A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining 
so that the speaker may conclude your remarks. 
  
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing 
shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s announcement to open the 
public hearing.   The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward to 
speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record 
and allowed three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty 
seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.    After a public 
hearing is closed, there shall be no additional public comments.  If Council needs 
additional information from the general public, some limited comments may be allowed 
at the discretion of the Mayor.    
 
If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be recorded 
in the official minutes as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the individual 
may complete the registration form provided in the lobby by providing the name, address, 
and comments about a city related subject.  These comments will be referred to the City 
Council and City Manager.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



Vision Statement I - Core Services   
Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 

through innovation and planning. 
 

12.1 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a Statement of Support 
for the Guard and Reserve. 

 
12.2 Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving a resolution for the City 

of College Station's participation in Partnership for Working Toward Inclusive 
Communities, a program sponsored by the National League of Cities. 

 
12.3 Presentation, possible action and discussion on an ordinance authorizing the 

issuance and sale of City of College Station, Texas General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$15,000,000; approving the form of a preliminary official statement; selecting 
underwriters for the bonds; and ordaining other matters related thereto, 
including immediate effectiveness. 

 
12.4 Presentation, possible action, and discussion of the City of College Station 

Recycling Collection Program. 
 
13. The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular 

meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session agenda for 
November 9, 2006. 

 
14. Final action on executive session, if necessary. 

 
15. Adjourn. 

 
If litigation issues arise to the posted subject matter of these Council Meetings an 
executive session will be held. 
 
APPROVED: 
 

__

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

______________________________ 
City Manager  
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas will be held on the Thursday, November 09, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. at the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following 
subjects will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda. 
 
Posted this the 6th   day of November, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. 
 

7



E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on November 6, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the College Station 
City Hall on the following date and time:  __________________________ by 
________________________. 
 
    Dated this _____day of ________________, 2006. 
    By______________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the _____day of ________________, 2006. 
 
______________________________   
Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas  My commission expires: ___________ 
 
The building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov .  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 
 
 
 

8

http://www.cstx.gov
http://www.cstx.gov


 

 

November 9, 2006 
Workshop  

National League of Cities Summit Report 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Connie Hooks, City Secretary                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a report given 
by Council Members Lynn McIlhaney and Chris Scotti on the National League of Cities 
Leadership Summit held in September in Colorado Springs, Colorado.  Topics of discussion 
shall include citizen involvement, ethics in leadership, and governance. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): N/A 
 
 
Summary:  Presented by Council Members. 
 
Attachments:   
 
Allan Wallis Article 
Peter Block Article 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



.pa~da3se pue paz!u 
-803a1 s! a8ualleqz- d!qslapeal 
aq1 J! %u!ple~alLlq3u s,)eq1 auo 
aq ues I! 'lln3gpp a4 Leu a8eLo~ 
aq1 q8noql 'palellsuomap aq 
sv .lapom aloJ e se uolalqseqg 
lap!suo3 'as! aql u! yms $1 

-q3n,s al.Laq1 leq1 Ou!uug 
-uo3 JInsal aq1 qly sqsu [lems 
aqel 01 %u!~!ht Lluo ale suogez 
-!ue%o Luem 001 'a8ualleqs a~!] 
-depe 8u!lunep e qp pa3q 

'qsu aql aqw 01 1nq 
a3!oq3 aljl!l aAeq 01 pamaas Laq1 
'ssas3ns 103 asueqs alllg pamaas 
aiaq, q8noqllv 'puelsI e!%1oa9 
qlnog uo uo!lo~s %u!leq~ 
e molj dlaq qaas 01 s~luellv 
qlnog ,h~~ols aql sso13e saltm 
008 I!es 01 ueld e pauuoj aH 
.anDsal I!aql u! is!sse 01 aldoad 
pug plnos aq a1aqM ~u!od Lue 
moq sal!ur jo spalpunq ~l!)s seM 
aq uaql lnq 'puel 01 Mals s!q la8 
01 pa2euem uo~alqseqg :a8ual 
-1eqs aq1 a~e~nsuammo3 lr!ql 
sysp aye1 01 %u!~[!M a8 

.aloqM It?lom puwaslnosal 
saAeal leq1 Le~t e u! Inq &puodsa.r 
01 paledald aq 01 spaau lapeal e 
pue 'L~!iorllne 01 saBualleq3 aqoA 

-old ualjo II!M sa8ualleq:, aA!l 
-dape q)~ Bugeaa .pu!m UMO 

s!q dn ayem 01 1a)uadrez- aq1 
amal 1aL 'puemmos s!q llasseal 
01 seM qz~oo~dde sw %)uoqlne 
s!q 01 a8ualleq3 s!q) ssalppe 01 
poq uolalyseqg 'laqllej Lue llnd 
01 pasnjal laluadre:, s,d!qs aq~ 
')1033a aurallxa $0 slnoq lagv 

,amoq la8 01 alq!ssod 8u!q1 
-ha~a %u!op alaM Laq) 1eq1 uam 
s!q 01 aleijsuomap 01 palueM 
aq 1nq 'ssal)!nq pa~old Iloga 
au iCe~e sap sz auros ialeM 
uado o) slooq aq1 8elp 01 uam 
s!q palaplo uolalyseqg 'sleoqaj!~ 
aalq) L~UO q11~ as! aq~ uo 
papuellg :d!qslapeal 01 saSua1 
-1eqs ql!~ leap L[~A!I~~JJ~J . .p~e~.~oj 1loga lsaq l!aq1 )nd 
ueq~ laqlel a%e8uas!p 01 ~ai3 
aq) salyu! leu .seap! poo8 aq~ 
ql!~ dn auros pue suo!spap aql 
30 ~lr! aqem 01 s! d!qslapeal 30 
L1!1!q!suodsai aq) )eq1 a8essaur 
aq) puas 01 IOU ~ya~e:, 3q ~snur 
slapeal ah!ldepe (IV .uam s!rl 01 
y3eq q~oht aq1 a~e8 uo1aly2eqg 
'SLBM laqio pue s!ql UI 

.smalqold 
aAlos 01 MO~ uo suo!~saB;Ins 
2001 Lluado osle aH .s[!e~ap aq1 
)no ~JOM 01 maql ya1 uaql pue 
slenpypu! ale!ldo~dde 01 syse~ 
lualajj!p 103 sa!1!l!q!suodsal 
d!qslapeal pa~nq!~~s!p Lla~!1 
-3ajja uo1aly3eqg 'ma13 s!q jo laq 
-maw ha~a jo luama8e8ua ah!) 
-ua,tu! ualjo pue 111-13 aql papaau 
aH .auole uo!s!~ s!q %u!z!1eai 
jo alqetles ~ou se~n uo~alyseqg 
'suo!l!padxa lelod %up3npuo:, u! 
as!lladxa lea18 peq aq q8noq~lv 
:qsuq ~JOM aq~ aA!g . .uo!s!~ s1! ,no ain%!j plnoqs 
uo!1ez!ue9io ue 'a.loja~au.paqs! 
-lad Lldm!s sa8ualleqs lel!m!s 

-1aq3 la1eaG uaha ue pala330 
UO!S!A s!q 'pa3ej Laql sasuels 
-mn3.1!3 aql lapun 'sno!~qo 
aq1 8u!lels lsnj sem uolalq3eqg 
jeql uraas Leu I! q8noqllv 
.uo!s!~ qsns 30 aldmexa [wa~od 
e pap!~old aqe amoq auoLla~a 
8u!11a8 30 uo!s!~ s,uolalqseqg 
.d!qslapeal aA!Jsajja jo sl(!ys 
~ojem lnoj aq1 30 auo se uo!s!~ 
Su!)e~ala pue leal3 e Bu!p!~old 
Lj!~uap! lausod 'Z hrleg pue 
saznox 'w same1 ,,'a8ual[eq3 
d!qslapeal au,, qooq aqi UI 

,;amoq 08 11,aM 'auo8 salols pue 
d!qs WM,, '~t?ql maql pauuoju! 
pue laq1aBol uam s!q jq8nolq 
uo1alqseqg 'a3! Lq paqsnn 
seM d!qs +aql layv :uo!s!~ 8u! 
-1ehala pur! leap e ap!Aold . qsel I!aql qs!lduros3e pue [law 
Suole la8 ppoM 1eq) smeal 01 
waq~ pauB!sse pue iaquram Mals 
q3ea 30 ~uameiadura) )3u!ls!p 
aq1 30 IYPU!~ seM uolalqseqg 
'aur!~ awes aq1 1v sysel puam 
Ou!urlojlad paleqs auodla~g 
.eas le d!qs e uo pasn Lq~e 
-lay leuo11!pe11 aq~ Su!uane~ Lq 
').red u! 's~ql p!p aH .msal e o1u! 
Man s!q 8u!plom 30 a3ue1lodm! 

01 lapeal e 103 q8noua IOU s,~! 
Ins .asmos a8ueq3 Lla~!13aga 
01 pasn ~allaq aq plnos ieqi 
sa31nosal rely Bu!mnsuos 1snj 
s! ssau!snq ~snpuor, 01 8u!nu!luo3 
uaqM pue 'pa8ueqs seq alelado 
suo!lez!ue8lo l!aq1 qs!q~ u! 
luamuol!r\ua aq1 uaqM aleMe aq 
o) paau slapea? :as! aql u! ysn~s 
s,d!qs aq) uaqM MOUX 

xolsas yqnd 
aq~ u! slapeal q1~ 11aM aleuosai 
Xlle!sadsa 1eql ys ale alau.uo!l 
-!padxa s,uo1aly3eqg moy suos 
-sal u~elp aAeq aldoad Lue~ 

.suo!~e~sadxa UMO 1!aq1 
paasxa osle 1nq 'a~!~lns Lluo 
1ou 01 auoLla~a Mop jeq1 suo!) 
-nlos jua~u! 01 sIaMolIoj l!aqi 
q11m qio~ 1snm slapea? .q8noua 
IOU Ll~eap s! d!qslapeal [e3!u 
-q3a1 'suo!l!puo3 asaql lapun 

,peaqe meals Ilnj %u!leu8!s 
sau!8ua ~I!M ~nq'a~aqmou But08 
suo!lez!ue810 amos ljal aAeq sa!) 
-!leal %u$ueqs L[p!dea .surleal 
~!jo~duou put, qqnd aql u! 

aq~ paz!laal uolalq3eqg 
'lU3tU 

-aAloAu! s,auoLla~a saqn bal 
7.10~ a~!]depe Ins .yuel ql!~ 
%u!sealsu! as!~ladxa qlw 'uo!)ez 
-!ue9lo les!qslela!q e u! palpueq 
-1laM ualjo s! ylom les!uqsaL 
:a8ualleqs aq1 1!j 01 Ll!sedes 
~euo!~ez~ueBlo pl!na . .auop aq 01 qlo~ a~!ldepe s! 
alaql laq1 puu~s~apun Laq) leq1 
os Man aq1 01 pales!unmuros 
aq 01 spaau 61!1ea1 1eu .as! aql 
u! qsn~s s! d!qs aq) leq1 m1ea.r 

suo!l~ue;l~o lo[eru 103 p!es aq 
ues awes aq1 Ins .paqsrur, Bu!aq 
30 la8uep u! pue a3! aq1 u! uazolj 
alaM maq130 Luem ~oq aas pue 
sassau!snq lojem laq~o lo umo 
qaq~ 113 punole qool 01 slapeal 
qsns 103 pleq aq 1,uplnoM 11 

srapeal ssau!snq alelodros 
01 paqsl!d ualjo ale - su!qlad 
'L'N s!uuaa Lq ,,uo!~!padxz 
~!J~IE~UV s,uo~a~qseqg 
30 e8eg Lleu!ploe~~xg aq) 
moy suossq d!qslapeq :a8pg 
aql )e Bypeal,, pue naledde3 
a!ueqdalg pue Ilarron 
1081e~ Lq ,,laloldxx 3!1s~eiuv 
lea19 aql molj suossal 
d!qslapea? :L~M sGuo~a1q3eqg,, 
- a8eLo~ s,uo1alq3eqg 30 sas 
-Lleue ;7u!nas-~saq aql 30 OML 

slapVal urapour Lq paq sa8ual 
-1eq3 aq1 q1y aleuosal 01 smaas 
es!~s~e~uv aslaAsue1) 01 islg 
aql aq 01 ~161 u! uo!l!padxa 1y 
-ssaz~snsun s,uolalq3aqg Isaulg 
11s 'alnlua~pe 30 ale) poo8 
paurep e 8u!aq 01 uo!)!pps UI 

'XIY J~M 
sa!1!3 s,uo?lv~ jo ails? s,yaaM 
ISV] u! pa~uaddv ~]J!IJV ay~jojjvy 
IS.I$~~J 2l3!IJV IJVd-0611 ~j04Vy 
puo3as ayl q Su!~olloj  at/^ 

san?13ads~ad Xl!unurur03 
uo sani3oj lay] ~uaurdolanap 
d!ys~apval lvuos~ad sap!no~d 
I!lUlUnS 2ql 'IVJJ~~J ~?~SJJ~VJ~ 

v so pauS?saa ,0103 ~SU?J(/S 
opv~0~03 u! 1~osa8 u!munoly 
auuaXay3 ayl In EZ-12 '1d3 ~oj 
pqnpay3s ']!urwnS d!ys~apua7 
~v~~~uv ~IPI ayl IU paluas 
-JJ~ aq 111~ IV~I s~do~ ptiv sanss! 
ayI PUilOJU $U!A]OAJJ SJl31LlV 
j0 SalJaS V U! 1/1~110j ayl qqL 

10



Leading in 
Challenging Times: 

The Role of Adaptive 
Leadership 

Trainer(s): Dr. Allan Wallis 
Graduate School of Public Affairs 
University of Colorado 
1380 Lawrence Street Center, Suite 525 
Campus Bos 142, P.O. Box 173364 
Denver, CO 80217-3364 

(303) 556-5991 Phone 
(303) 556-5971 (fax) 

National League of Cities Leadership Training Institute 
14"' Annual Leadership Sumnit 

Septernbcr 21-23, 2006 Colorado Springs, CO 

11



5'7% TS 

The role of 
adaptive leadership 

Things are pretty much 
the same here. 

How are they with you? 

12



Leadership Situation Space 

PROBLEM-TASK 

I CLEAR 

1 I UNCLEAR 

' 1. Nature of the problem is clear and there is a 
known and effective solution. 

2. Nature of problem is clear, but there is no 
known, effective solution. 

3. Nature of the problem is not clear and there is 
no solution. 

Expertise / Authority 
REQUIRED SKILLS A AUTHORITY 

FACILITATIVE 

MIX OF FACILITATIVE & 
TECHNICAL 

-- - .- .- - 

TECHNICAL 1 

INFORMAUHORIZONTAL 

MIX OF FORMAL AN0 
INFORMAL 

- 

FORMAUHIERARCHICAL 

7 

13



Locate Your Leadership Challenges 

, .. .- . . . . - . . . -. . 
TASK 1 - UNCLEAR 

CLEAR I 
FORMAL1 
E X E R T  1 SUU5/ 

Leadership Style 
A 

TASK 

High A 

0 -h 

Zone o f  business as usual 

Time 

14



Leadership Challenge I 
High 

6 
nr 
2, 
E 
I 
in 

1 Low 

Modulaling slress lo 

A/\ Creatina awareness of - 
the adGlive challenge 

Time 1 

We were more than 50 people cam ed on the Col 
that night. huddled in shelters pitche8side by side, yet 
an odd feelin of ~solat~on hung In the alr. The roar of 
the wind ma& it impossible to communicate from one 
tent t o  the next. I n  that God forsaken place I felt 
disconnected from the climbers around me-kmotionally, 
spiritually, physically-to a de ree that I had not 
experienced on previous expeiitions. We were a team in 
name only. I'd sadly come to realize. Although in a few 
hours we would leave the camp as a group we would 
ascend as individuals linked to one another by neither 
rope nor any deep s e k e  o f  loyalty. Each client was in i t  
fo r  himself or herself, pret ty  much. And I was not 
different. 

from I n t o  Thin Air 

15



The makings of crisis: 

Treating an adaptive 
challenge as a technical 

Failing to create a team out 
of members of the 

L E A D I N G  IN 

CHZLENGING 

f l r nES  

The role of 
adaptive leadership 

-... 
,s v,, .V8 &;? 

16



LESSON ONE 

KNOW WHEN 
YOU'RE STUCK IN 

.' ' $?;? THE ICE: don't 
confuse a n  

I I 

TECHNICAL VS. ADAPTIVE CHALLENGES 

When the challenge is technical we know 
the nature of the problem and how to 
s;ol\,e ~ t .  

* When the problem is adaptive we know 
what the problem is, but have no 
solution ... 
OR some of our followers question 
whether there is a problem. 

What do you see1 What do they see? 

,'-' ,, 

' ,' ! 

'x. \ ; 1 
! 

, .- .. . . 1' 

17



LESSON TWO 

DEVELOP A GROUP OR TEAM IDENTITY 
TO MEETTHE CHALLENGE: make every 
individual responsible for the solution. 

What do you see / What do they see? 

$ . b  , .a 
,.- d" .. 

. . &  e ' .  $& y:,. 
- - . ;-.- ,-F. ,... % 5 r4aA~G'db:;ft @ 

"" , ~ . "  R,., *',l.,xll llrn'.' u. hi. I, ,.,, r:,,.lr: .<,. ,c'.., 'I.-"' L 

,,,,..., >.",, 1..,r. 

18



CREA1-ING A SENSE OF TEAM 
-- 

Flatten hierarchy, but make your authority clear. 

Reduce differences in social class, training and 
temperament. 
Although not everyone has equal status, make it 
clear that each is valued equally and treated 
with respect. 

Set the example by never asking someone to do 
something that you wouldn't do yourself 

Characteristics of High 
Performance Teams* 

They share a clear and elevating goal 

They are results driven 
All team members are competent 

They share a unified commitment 
- There is a collaborative work climate 

Standards of excellence are shared 

External support and recognition 

Principled Leadership 
Based on Larson and Fasto 

LESSON THREE 

FRAME A WINNING 
ATTITUDE: bring a 
realistic sense of 
optimism to your task 
and share that optimism 
with others you work 
with. 

19



Optimism is a learned behavior 

"The mind is  like a pond of 
water. If you do no t  stir it, it 

remains clear." 
Er ik  Wcihc7unnyer, 2001 

Elenients of 0p.timism 
- 

Optimism consists of how we interpret our 

setbacks. 
Pessimists see set back as a fatal flaw in 
themselves that cannot be changed. Optimists 
see setbacks as the result of factors that they 
have the power to do something about. 
Optimists can more readily make a realistic 
assessment of a setback and admit how they 
contributed to it. 

LESSON FOUR 

DEVELOP A 
PLAN: reframe 
the situation to 

vision" of a 
positive outco~ne 

20



INTERNAL 
FACTORS 

Scenario Mapping 

INTERNAL Morale 8 phys~cal 
FACTORS litness 

Only some ' t  Everyone gets 
surv,ve o home a l ~ v e  

+ -$- ', . EXTERNAL 

Everyone d ~ e s  Only some FACTORS 

I .  SUrV'Ve Ice 8 weather 

cond~t~ons 

Sltackleto~t's Scerrario Map 

INTERNAL Capacity 
FACTORS 

EXTERNAL 
FACTORS 

Opportunity 

Scettal-io Map for Local Gouenrlnelzts in the US 

21



CONSTRUCTIVELY: 
address challenges to 
your authority in a 
manner that maintains 

, all of the resources that 

WORKING WITH DIFFICULT PEOPLE 

c( GIJ I- - Keep y w  opposrtion close 
Learn to lrsten to cr~tic~sm 

Thrnk about how to use your opponents as 
a resource 

i' 
b' 

* b - ~  fitL,fi,bs . l ; f . -r  
' d L f '  

I .. 
I 

s b F y b . i  , i  r , 

+ A Conflict Scale 

Assertiveness 

Cooperativeness 
v 4  + 

Thomas-Killman Conflict Mode Instrument 

22



Ways of Handling Conflicts 

Competing- an individual pursues herlhis own concerns 
at another's expense. 
Accommodating- individual neglects herlhis own 
concerns to satisfy another. 
Avoiding- individual avoid addressing herlhis concerns 
and those of others. 
Collaborating- individual works with others to find a 
mutually satisfying solution. 
Compromising- individual looks for an expedient. 
mutually acceptable solution which partially satisfies 
parties 

Ways of Handling Conflict 
+ 

A 
Competing Collaborating 
0 0 

Compromising 

0 

0 0 
Avoiding Accommodating 

Where do you fall within this scale. How can this 
knowledge help you in dealing with conflicts? 

V 4 b 

+- 

A Competing Collaborating 
0 0 

Compromising 

0 

0 0 
Avoiding Accommodating 

T 4 b 
I 9 

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



1 4 ~ "  ANNUAL LEADERSHIP SUMMIT 
September 21-23, 2006 * Colorado Springs, Colorado 

* Empowerment and Stewardship * Chosen Accountability * The Reconciliation of Community * Creating Communities that Work * Bringing Change through Consent and 
Connectedness rather than through 
Mandate and Force. 

Peter Block 

Peter Block is an author, consultant and citizen of Cincinnati, Ohio. His work is about 
empowerment, stewardship, chosen accountability, and the reconciliation of community. 

Peter is the author of several best selling books. The most widely known being Flawless 
Consulting: A Guide to Getting Your Expertise Used (1 edition 1980); Stewardship: Choosing 
Service Over Self-Interest (1 993) and The Empowered Manager: Positive Political Skills at Work 
(1987). Peter is the recipient of the first place 2004 Members' Choice Award by the Organization 
Development Network, which recognized Flawless Consulting as the most influential book for OD 
practitioners over the past 40 years. 

He has also authored Flawless Consulting Fieldbook & Companion: A Guide to Understanding 
Your Expertise, published in November 2000. The Answer to How Is Yes: Acting on What Matters 
(Berrett Koehler 2002) won the 2002 Independent Publisher Book Award for Business 
Breakthrough Book of the Year. Freedom and Accountability at Work: Applying Philosophic 
Insight to the Real World, was co-authored with consultant and philosopher Peter Koestenbaum 
(Jossey-BassIPfeiffer, 2001 ). 

The books are about ways to create workplaces and communities that work for all. They offer an 
alternative to the patriarchal beliefs that dominate our culture. His work is to bring change into the 
world through consent and connectedness rather than through mandate and force. Flawless 
Consulting (2nd edition 1999) is about having impact when you have no direct control and has 
become a classic for anyone in a consulting role. The Empowered Manager focuses on creating 
an organization of your own choosing. Stewardship is about the right use of power and designing 
organizations for service. The Answer to How Is Yes is about giving priority to what matters over 
what simply works. 

He is a partner in Designed Learning, a training company that offers workshops designed by 
Peter to build the skills outlined in his books. He received a Masters Degree in Industrial 
Administration from Yale University in 1963; he performed his undergraduate work at the 
University of Kansas. 

Peter serves on the Board of Directors of Cincinnati Classical Public Radio, and acts as an 
advisor to the City of Hope and Hip Hop Center in Cincinnati. He is the first Distinguished 
Consultant-in-Residence at Xavier University. He has received national awards for outstanding 
contributions in the field of training and development, including the American Society for Training 
and Development Award for Distinguished Contributions; the Association for Quality and 
Participation President's Award; and Training Magazine HRD Hall of Fame. 

46



by Peter Block 

This is the second in ci serics of 
rrrficlcs revolving aroitnd the topics 
that will be pre.rented at NLC's 
13th Annual Leadership Su~?tntil, 
scheduled for September 21-23 at 
the Cheyenne Moftntain Resort in 
Colorado Springs, Colo. T11b year's 
u~rrlevlyir~g t11ai1e.r are hnocratic 
governance, citizen engageri~ent 
and the re.rtoration of con~rnunity. 
Designed as a 1eade1:ship retreat, 
the surnniil provdespemnal lead- 
ership development t h t  i.7 focrrsed 
orr corl?rlzunity perspectives. 

If we want to change the direc- 
tion of our community, then we 
niust change the conversation. 
The dominant existing public con- 
versation is retributive, not 
restorative. It is void of accounta- 
bility and soft on ummitment. 
l i i s  is true both in the conversa- 
tion played out in the media and 
in the private conversations occur- 
ring in smaller gatherings 

l i e  existing public conversa- 

Peter Block 
tion drives us apart; it does not 
bring us together. The media 
exploits the wounds of communi- 
ty by over-reporting fear. drama- 
tizing opposition and headlining 
retribution.7he existing conversa- 
tion nurtures entitlement and 
individual rights, not accountabili- 
ty and con~munity. 

The limitation of most conver- 
sations in smaller gatherings is our 
desire to talk about people who 
are not in the room. We seek to 

change, persuade and influence act as if this well-being is in our 
others as if their change will help hands and hearts to create. 
us reach our goals This conversa- 
tion docs not produce power: it What ComtitutesAction 
consumes it. 

We restrain our power through 
our obsession with a narrow view 
of action. We think that by focus- 
ing on concrete steps, milestones 
and measures that the future will 
shift. If we are too concerned with 
immediate actions and outcomes, 
we will seek only sniall changes 
and tlie past will remain intact. 
The action that leads to large 
changes is indifferent to speed and 
is focused on language, related- 
ness and purpose. 

The power to create a future 
requires us to choose to be 
accountable. To be accountable, 
among other thingsmeans you act 
as an owner and part creator of 
whatever it is that you wish to 
improve. In the absence of this, 
you are in the position of effect. 
not cause - a powerless stance. 
To be amountable is to care for 
the well-be in^ of the whole a id  

Civicengagement is the pursuit 
of accountability and commit- 
ment through a shift in the lan- 
guage and conversation we use to 
make our community better. 

We treat civic engagement as 
something more than voting, vol- 
unteering and supporting events 
designed to bring people together. 
While civic engagement is about 
action, it is not about community 
action and community develop 
merit as we normally think of it. 

Action as we use it here is not a 
decision to spend more money, 
end or continue programs, or to 
step in a new direction. It is, most 
simply put, the choice to radically 
change our language. Civic 
engagement is an action through 
which citizens join in new conver- 
sations that have the capacity to 
alter the future. 

venations for people when they 
gather. We might say that leader- 
ship is tlie capacity to name the 
debate and design the gatherings 

Each gathering serves two 
functions: to address its stated 
purpose and business issues. and 
to be an occasion for each per- 
son to decide to become 
engaged as an owner. The 
leader's task is to design the 
place and experience of these 
occasions to move the culture 
toward shared ownership. 

The dominant conventional 
belief system is that the task of 
leadership is to set a vision, enroll 
others in it and hold people 
accountable through measure- 
ments and reward. l i e  shift is to 
believe that the task of leadership 
is to produce engagement; to 
engage groups of people in a way 
that creates acu~~ntability (to care 
for their well-being of the whole), 
and commitment (to make and 
fulfill a promise without expecta- 
tion of return). 

These are the soecific ele- 
The F ~ ~ t i l i t ~  of Symptoms ments of c iv~c eigagement 
ne conventional view of l i e y  are I~nguistic shifts that 

community action and develop- cllallge the context through 

nient frequently addresses what wh'ch c O m n l u n i t ~  can be 
we typ~cally call problems, such restored and tradltiOndl prob- 
as crlme and public safety, lem solving and COmmunltY 

affordable hous~ng, youth, lobs can make the dif- 

and local economy, universal ference. 
health care and education. In the This kind leadership Is 
context of civic engagement, restorative; not retribut~ve It 

A Voyage of Endurance these lie are deeper really symptoms cause a 
consumes ~ t .  It is leadership that 
produces energy rather than 

~ p d c r  M-2% PO@ unreconclled and fragmellted Creates accountabl l i t~  as I t  con- 

Chapme MomUmlhwt- Labredo Sprimps, CD nature of  our community, m l s  fronts people with their free- 

CaSpansared end h l a P e t j  ~h&w&ip with llw R~lcky )Itauntain Ragnn fragmentat~on creates a context As a engagement 
where trying to solve the synlp- centered leadels bring kitchen 

MaLtwf  Dlan* n w ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ w n ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ I L h ~ v l n ~ L c a d e m h p  SurrmamthtOlarana MaumaaLw~ toms o n l y  sustains them table and street corner democ- 
h CoWedo Soring8 CCL the  @!Ion01 LshguO of CRPS L u a d W o  Trolnng Immule otaama 8 pwrm 
& p n d  ro m h a r w  p r  sums and u n d m n d n g  d qm hdnnhb rdn d r e s p w l h l t m  as m Otherw~se why liavc we been I n t o  being 
(laelad o K i ~ a L  working on these symptoms for 
C h h W  Our ldbbr O f  Ludsnklo so long and so hard and, even DetniLsTheannuaiLeadershl~ 
C o m n m n t  u M a t  trwzf~m 0 pvnfw Im mnhy. L UCO pmuu tg thong. k bcs d tfilngr, L I& with so many successful pro- Summ~t is NLC's premtere leader- 
rhedalv b~urphdimbpi~Wuar&kapli&a T k b a r n m n ~ a d m s a m y o u a r a d ~ a  oaba pombcrrtk 
OD sxgRsteilon Qlmrq a pmne nm cgdnlwl on m r f e  ecUon hunn c r ~ w  me comnonr grams, seen too l~ttle fundanien- s h l ~  program for 
Imuw ~ n g * u w n t h ~ m u @ i t h n  ppwdpbSLli abrmrm arddclnn nm oen-0"s tor p ~ a p l o  ~ h m  tal change? local officials The advance regs- 

me real Intent of trat~on deadline is July 15. For 
TbWrlallZofCMunlw engagement IS to sh~f t  the con- more l'*"*atlon. (202) 626- 
Bcrbm&iwo~P*tunhkb crwtacoun~manLrcwcntrbi~~,~~rncPclrrgs mopbto euasourwm 
taa-pag*60 pwfia o ~ ~ ~ m d H l h  ~achotharand ~ o m n p ~ a m r m h c h a I m a d o m  Ihsrouw text where t rad~t~onal  problem 3127 Or w.nlcOrg 

haederehb b a u d  on lnbrtaoon rrd conlant LIDK ul our  emom et hulflnn i n w n s  vy m a b e  cnd solving, investment, and soc~al 
WIIIPOT Chlngn. SIrabqlw ot EP*IIII mlf i ic#nrmnhlm Wrr accou~aUIb7 rwlacw WMVW and cornmu~~lty action take ' I o c k  ls an and 
mmrnbnsm rapkcas nsOaabon. and nnmma@m +nax psmmmn mi mnlpliahon. h a m n a  tb 
darntea cwda llle aoml aPam qhve chanpa and dwiopmanc ten he Irrrtusd of hand place It 1s almed at the restora- co'zsulfafzt residing 

tlon experience and vltall- Crncir~r~ntr His work 1.7 about 
ty of community. ~t 1s this shift In 'mPo'Vermeflt, stewardshl~, tho- 

E Y P b B  IAb b m c u M o  nnd apebmnrllsr c( I~&nhlo In c h d u n p &  l k e r  WmWa Vls d l l e m ~ i t b t  expressed a sen ac~ofrntobrlity o l d  the rec- 
h u r n  Ipchnkal u-L adup14 ELIIIP.QPs utIOaduF(M(K k m d ~ s r  w ur"nuctbtheI&wd don't 
~onlusa sn a b p h a  - 2 h n l h ~ a  &I r ~srhrud &lht Enpqr in unip .  upnrfil a m h a r  m shtft In language that creates the o"crlfatrOn of commu171t~. 'lock 
tiaanrhma ddabaho~n a i r4  dwnmgl~a tpae l ro t  a w @ l a g l e ~ ( h i p ~  con,jltlon wllere tradltlonal IS tile author ofseveral best-$dl- 
hwl* u l @  bad bmil l lw E W h E f N  forms of action can make a dif. ing books rncludrng "Flc~wless 
S l n  ~~pd Wlw Plhr BblL ~ n d  I&rrhi mhobr &kin Wall& 110- mlh I~adcdmp bnwrs ference Consrlltmg. A Guide to Gcttrrzg 
PlrBhippaldMchnal Gadnsr,andulddhadrCkriaop*r 6n1n$m f l u  engkp I~I d dfnaat and ~*nec- Your Expertrse Used" and 
lbre om~ruxtkconlrmr tha chubnamof I ~ ~ o M d i p  In local norarcmait Dswsr mtn facuovour 
~ r d g r r r p ~ . h a s a n d m ~ r p u ~ p m v ,  you n Y y t o  s n ~ m w l t r ~ n ~ n u r c o m r u n n y  whal ~ ~ ~ d ~ ~ ~ h i ~  M~~~ "Stewardship. Chooslng Service 

Over Self-Interest "Block har 

~ B ~ I Y I . ,  10&edHbIn P w ~ a u l l w a  Claruwment La ~sr~snhlp wrorern Leaders create the condtbons also reccived revera1 national 
for CIVIC engagemcnt l i e y  do this crwards for outtta~zdmg cor~trr- 
through the power they have to brrtio~u m the field of training 
focus attention and define thc con- and development 

47



Creating a New Culture: 
Changing our Ideas of 

Leadership 

Trainer(s): Peter Block 
P.O. Box 225 
West Mystic, Connecticut 06388 

Mail to: maggie.pbi@att.net 

National League of Cities Leadership Training Institute 
14"' Annual leadership Suinrnit 

September 21-23, 2006 Colorado Springs, CO 

48



49



50



51



The Myths of Change 

Train lots of individuals 

Automate citizen involvement 
Privatize services 

Increase consequences 
.The top drives the change 

Get a better plan 

52



53



54



a,' 
L 

55



Some examples of the inversion of thinking about accountability and 
commitment: 

The audience determines the quality of the 
performance 

The subordinate constructs the boss 
The child creates the nature of parent 
The citizen creates its leadership 
Problem solving occurs to build relatedness 
Inhabitants create the room and the building 
The student creates the teacher 
The future creates the present 
The listening creates the speaker 

56



57



58



59



m m m m m m  - - - - - -  
0.0.0.0.0.0. 
a , a , a , a , a ,  
L L L L L  

60



61



62



63



l nvitation 

Who needs to be in the room? 

How do we ensure they come by choice? Where 
should the invitation come from? 

What hurdle is required of them should they choose 
to attend? 

How do we welcome them when they show up and 
assure them they are in the right place? 

What declaration defines the context and possibility of 
the gathering? 

64



65



0 'a, 
I d  

66



67



68



69



70



 

November 9, 2006 
Workshop Agenda Item 

Outside Agency Funding Policy Review 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on the outside agency 
funding policy. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends Council provide direction on changes to the 
outside agency funding process.   
 
Summary:  As part of the 2006-2007 budget process the City Council provided direction to 
bring back to the City Council for discussion an item on the outside agency funding policy.  
The proposed policy is intended to be a starting point for discussion on what direction the 
City Council wishes to go with the policy for outside agency funding.  The goal will be to get 
a revised policy adopted by early 2007.   
 
A meeting was held with the Outside Agency Funding Review Committee to review this draft 
policy.  Feedback from the committee will be provided at the City Council meeting.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  There is no immediate budget and financial impact to this 
presentation. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Executive Summary 
2. Proposed Policy 

71



Executive Summary 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 

 
The following is a summary of the proposed outside agency funding 
policy. 
 

• Section 1 - Policy Statement 
o The new policy provides a specific policy statement that 

defines the parameters for providing funding to outside 
agencies. 

 
• Section 2 - Contract Partner Agencies 

o Proposed Process 
§ The new policy identifies Contract Partner Agencies 

which provide unique services to the City through 
providing economic development, tourism development 
and marketing, and coordination of cultural arts 
activities.   

§ These organizations are the Research valley 
Partnership, Convention and Visitors Bureau, and the 
Arts Council of Brazos Valley.  These organizations 
will have their budget requests reviewed at the staff 
level as part of the department budget review 
process.   

§ The City Manager shall make recommendations to the 
City Council on funding for those organizations, and 
the City Council will decide final funding levels. 

o Current Process 
§ Currently the funding request for the Arts Council of 

Brazos Valley is reviewed by the Outside Agency 
Funding Review Committee 

§ Currently the requests for the Research Valley 
Partnership and the Convention and Visitors Bureau 
are reviewed at the staff level and then presented to 
the City Council for consideration.  

 
• Section 3 - Outside Service Agencies (Non CDBG) 

o The new policy states that only agency programs will be 
funded.  This means that funds must be used for a specific 
program and not for general operations. 

o The new policy also requires agencies to request funds from 
other governmental agencies including the City of Bryan and 
Brazos County. 

o The new policy states that funding will be provided from 
one source only from the City of College Station and 
multiple requests will not be accepted. 

o The new policy provides a limit to the amount of time and 
level at which an agency can be funded.  Agency will 
receive funds for no more than 3 years on a declining 
funding basis. 
§ Year 1 100% of initial funding 
§ Year 2 50% of initial funding 
§ Year 3 25% of initial funding 

o The new policy requires agencies demonstrate sustainability 
beyond a 3 year City funding period. 

72



 
• Section 4 - CDBG/Joint Relief Funding Review 

o Agencies qualify for CDBG funding based on HUD criteria and 
the Joint Relief Funding Review Committee guidelines 
established by College Station and Bryan. 

 
• Section 5 - Outside Agency Review Process 

o All applications except those exempt will be presented to 
the Council appointed Outside Agency Funding Review 
Committee (OAFRC). 

o Evaluation Criteria 
§ Public purpose 
§ Community impact 
§ Compliance with policy requirements 
§ Essential service 
§ Sustainability test 
§ Availability of funds 

o Estimate of available funding to support the Council policy 
will be provided. 

o Funding Sources 
§ CDBG 
§ Hotel Tax Funds 
§ General Funds - limited to 0.5% of estimated General 

Fund revenues (less return on investment) 
§ Total funds allocated from the General Fund will not 

exceed 85% of the available with the balance of funds 
15% to be available for use by the City Council to 
support Council corporate sponsorship activities. 

 
 

73



  Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Outside Agency Funding Policy 

Final Draft  
October 19, 2006 

 

74



 

  Page 2 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station  

 
Table of Contents 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................. 3 
Section 1 – Policy Statement.................................................................................................. 4 
1.00  Policy Statement.............................................................................................................. 5 
1.01  Policy Objectives ............................................................................................................. 5 
1.02  Public Funding Test........................................................................................................ 6 
1.04  Enforcement and Implementation................................................................................. 6 
1.05  Amendments and Changes............................................................................................ 6 
Section – 2  Contract Partner Agencies................................................................................. 7 
2.00  Contract Partner Agencies ............................................................................................. 8 
2.01  Contract Partner Agencies Funding Process ................................................................ 8 
2.02  Contract Partner Agencies Contracts ............................................................................ 8 
2.03  Reports and Monitoring ................................................................................................. 8 
Section 3 – Outside Service Agencies (Non CDBG)..........................................................10 
3.00  Outside Service Agencies (non CDBG) ........................................................................11 
3.01  General Eligibility Criteria for Outside Service Agencies (non CDBG).....................11 
3.01.1  Program Based Funding.............................................................................................11 
3.01.2  Funding Request to Other Public Entities.................................................................11 
3.01.3  Sustainability Test.......................................................................................................11 
3.01.4  Unified Pre-Application Workshop...........................................................................11 
3.01.5  Single Source Funding Application...........................................................................12 
3.01.6  Grant Applications......................................................................................................12 
3.01.7  Funding Period............................................................................................................13 
3.01.8  Hotel Occupancy Tax Funds Limitation ...................................................................13 
3.02  Outside Social Service Agencies (non-CDBG eligible)................................................14 
3.03  Tourism Development and Marketing Agencies ........................................................14 
3.04  Arts and Culture Agencies............................................................................................15 
3.04.1  Cultural Arts Agencies (Non ACBV Affiliates) Funding Criteria...........................15 
Section 4 – CDBG / Joint Relief Funding Review .............................................................16 
4.00  CDBG Funded Agencies................................................................................................17 
4.01  CDBG / Joint Relief Funding Review Criteria .............................................................17 
4.02  CDBG Joint Relief Funding Review Process................................................................17 
Section 5 – Outside Agency Review Process ......................................................................18 
5.00  Outside Agency Review Process ..................................................................................19 
5.01  Outside Agency Review Committee Evaluation Criteria ...........................................19 
5.02  Outside Agency Review Committee Recommendations............................................19 
5.03  Funding Outside Agency Request................................................................................19 
5.04  Funding Sources.............................................................................................................20 

 

75



  
 

  Page 3 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

Introduction  
This proposed policy presents a comprehensive policy statement by the College Station City 
Council in connection with funding for Outside Agencies and programs. The proposed policy 
replaces all previous policies adopted by the Council except as specifically noted within this 
policy statement. The proposed policy has been divided into four (4) Sections.  
 
Section 1 – General Policy Statement. This Section describes the scope of the Outside Agency 
policy, Policy Objectives, Definition of terms used in the policy, and types of Agencies addressed 
in the policy.  
 
Section 2 – Contract Partner Agencies. This Section deals with three (3) specific agencies which 
provide services to the City of College Station. Because of the magnitude of the funding and the 
unique nature of the services provided by the Contract Partner Agencies, they are treated on a  
separate  policy basis from other Outside Service Agencies.  
 
Section – 3 Outside Service Agencies. This section addresses Outside Service Agencies funded 
by the City of College Station from city sources other than Community Development Block Grant 
Funds.  
 
Section – 4 CDBG Public Service Agencies. This section addresses Outside Public Service 
Agencies funded by CDBG funds through the Joint Relief Funding Review process between the 
City of College Station and the City of Bryan.  
 
Section – 5 Outside Agency Review Process. This final section describes the review process for 
Outside Agency funding.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



  
 

  Page 4 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

Section 1 – Policy Statement 

 

 

This Section describes the scope of the Outside Agency policy, Policy 
Objectives, Definition of terms used in the policy, and types of 
Agencies addressed in the policy.  

77



  
 

  Page 5 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

1.00  Policy Statement   
It is the policy of the City of College Station, as adopted by its City Council, to provide funding in 
the form of grants to Community organizations and agencies who provide specific services and 
programs which support at least one of the following service objectives of the City:  
 

1) Provides a vital social service which is not duplicated by other organizations in the 
community or region.  

    
2) Provides a needed cultural or arts amenity to the community which is not duplicated in 

the community or region.  
 

3) Provides the City government with a specific economic development or tourism benefit 
which is consistent with the Council adopted Strategic Plan.  

 
4) Provides a unique service or program which is better delivered by a Community 

organization rather than City government itself.  
 
This policy applies to any Community organization, agency, program, or activity which operates 
as a non profit organization and requests a grant of funds from the City of College Station to 
deliver the program, service, or activity to College Station citizens.   

1.01  Policy Objectives  
Community organizations enrich College Station as a community and assists the City 
government in achieving its mission … On behalf of the citizens of College Station, home of Texas 
A&M University, we will continue to promote and advance the community’s quality of life. Providing 
public funding to community organizations require the achievement of public purposes through 
the statement of fair and equitable policies.  
 
The use of public money must meet clearly defined standards as mandated by the Texas 
Constitution, state statutes, and federal regulations. Those standards demand public funds be 
spent for public purposes and not for private benefit. This policy establishes a clear standard to 
provide grants to various Community organization who provide a public purpose by delivering 
programs and activities to the citizens of College Station.  
 
This policy has three (3) objectives:  
 

1. To provide a comprehensive statement of policy for  funding Community organizations.  
   
2. To provide specific guidance to Community organizations to evaluate their eligibility to 

receive public funds from the City of College Station.  
 

78



  
 

  Page 6 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

3. To establish clear guidelines and procedures to be administered by the City Manager 
and the City Council appointed review body to evaluate request for funding from 
Community organizations.  

1.02  Public Funding Test  
The Texas Constitution, state statutes, and federal regulations establish clear standards for the 
use of public money. The standards require cities to spend taxpayer money for public purposes 
and prohibits the use of public money for private purposes. The application of this mandate, for 
the purposes of this policy, will be accomplished on the basis that the City will fund those 
agencies and programs which fully meet the requirements of this policy. Every agency must 
serve a public purpose by delivering services which the City government could provide itself but 
chooses to deliver the services through a non profit entity.  
 
1.03  Definitions  
For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions will apply.  
 
Program. Refers to the smallest subpart of an organization or entity.  
 
Capacity Building. Systematic effort by an organization to develop organizational capabilities to 
raise funds, build leadership and stewardship capacity, and increase its service impacts.  
 
General and Administrative expenses. Cost of goods and services designed to pay for 
administrative services, management or general agency costs not directly attributable to the 
delivery of services to clients.  
 
Community Impact Statement. Compilation of data required by this policy which clearly 
demonstrates the number of College Station citizens benefiting from the program being 
considered for funding by the City of College Station.    
 
Sustainability. The ability of the program being considered for funding to be sustained after City 
funding has been exhausted.   

1.04  Enforcement and Implementation  
The City Manager will insure this policy is equitably administered. Each agency which  receives 
City funding will be provided a copy of this policy and the necessary guidelines developed to 
fully implement this policy.    

1.05  Amendments and Changes  
This policy may be amended by resolution of the City Council.  
 

79



  
 

  Page 7 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

Section – 2  Contract Partner Agencies 

 

 

This Section deals with three (3) specific agencies which provide 
services to the City of College Station. Because of the magnitude of 
the funding and the unique nature of the services provided by the 
Contract Partner Agencies, they are treated on a  separate  policy 
basis than other Outside Service Agencies.

80



  
 

  Page 8 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

2.00  Contract Partner Agencies 
The City of College Station recognizes there are Community organizations which provide unique 
services to the City through providing economic development, tourist development, marketing, 
and coordination of cultural arts activities to College Station citizens. Contract Partner Agencies 
will be required to follow a distinct and separate annual funding process from all other agencies 
covered by this policy.  
 
Agencies which fit the Contract Partner Agencies category are as follows:  
 

§ Research Valley Partnership (Economic Development)  
§ Convention and Visitors Bureau (Tourism Development and Marketing)  
§ Arts Council of Brazos Valley (Arts and Culture ) 

2.01  Contract Partner Agencies Funding Process  
Contract Partner Agencies will use the following procedures for annual funding requests:  
 

a) Submit budget requests to the City Manager by the deadline and format established by 
the City Manager. 

    
b) Budget request beyond base budget amounts will be submitted as service level 

adjustments to the City Manager for review and recommendations.  
  
c) Agency funding requests will be reviewed during departmental budget review process 

and submitted to the Council at the same time all departmental requests are submitted.  
 

d) The City Manager  will provide recommendations on each request from Contract Partner 
Agencies.  

 
e) City Council will approve funding levels for each Contract Partner Agency.  

2.02  Contract Partner Agencies Contracts  
Contracts will be required for all Contract Partner Agencies who are allocated funds by the City 
Council. Contracts will be approved by the City Attorney and submitted to City Council for final 
approval.  

2.03  Reports and Monitoring  
Quarterly Reports will be required of all Contract Partner Agencies. Quarterly Reports  will 
include quarterly financial statements that describe specifically how the funds from the City of 
College Station are being utilized, a narrative of program activities for the organization, and 
service levels and performance measures for each organization.  The City will monitor Contract 
Partner Agencies to ensure City funds are used to achieve public purposes and in compliance 
with Contract language.  
 

81



  
 

  Page 9 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

a. Continued funding is contingent on the timely submission of required Quarterly Reports.   
 

b. Organizations that receive funds from the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund will meet the 
requirements of this section and all of the requirements listed in the state law regarding the 
proper reporting and accounting of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds.     

 
c. An annual report will be prepared by all Contract Partner Agencies for City Council review 

as a part of the budget review process.  

82



  
 

  Page 10 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

Section 3 – Outside Service Agencies (Non CDBG) 

 

 

This section addresses Outside Service Agencies funded by the City 
of College Station from city sources other than Community 
Development Block Grant Funds.  

83



  
 

  Page 11 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

3.00  Outside Service Agencies (non CDBG)  
All agencies, except Contract Partner Agencies and CDBG eligible Public Service programs, 
requesting program funding will be required to follow the Outside Service Agency funding 
requirements established by this Section of the Outside Agency Funding Policy.  
 
Outside Service Agencies fall in three (3) categories:  
§ Outside Social Service Agencies (non CDBG eligible)  
§ Tourism Development and Marketing Agencies 
§ Arts and Culture Agencies 

3.01  General Eligibility Criteria for Outside Service Agencies (non CDBG)   
Outside Service Agencies must meet the following criteria and standards to be eligible for 
funding. 

3.01.1  Program Based Funding 
The City will fund Agency programs only. An agency must demonstrate a program serves a 
public purpose and the program has a positive community impact with the funds provided by 
the City. 

3.01.2  Funding Request to Other Public Entities  
Agencies are required to request and document in the application similar funding request to the 
City of Bryan and Brazos County if their primary mission serves Brazos County. When an agency 
also serves the Brazos Valley region, they must request and document similar funding request 
from other regional entities.  

3.01.3  Sustainability Test  
Outside Service Agencies must be able to clearly demonstrate it possesses the ability to sustain 
the program being submitted for funding beyond the three (3) year City funding period. The City 
of College Station does not desire to fund programs which only survive as long as City funding is 
available. Applicants must submit full documentation and plans to demonstrate the program can 
be sustained beyond the three (3) year funding period.  

3.01.4  Unified Pre-Application Workshop 
Outside Service Agencies must participate in a City sponsored Unified Pre-Application 
workshop to be eligible to submit an application for funding. During the required Unified Pre-
Application Workshop, Outside Social Service Agencies must determine if their programs(s) 
qualify for CDBG funding. Technical assistance will be provided during the Unified Pre-
Application Workshop to assist agencies to qualify for CDBG funding. The Unified Pre-
Application workshop will provide at minimum the following elements:  

 

 

84



  
 

  Page 12 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

a. Distribution and discussion of the Council adopted policy on Outside Agency funding.  
    
b. Discussion of eligibility requirements for funding.  

 
c. Distribution of application form and required submittals with the application.  

 
d. Presentation of  application timetables and schedules. 

 
e. Explanation of evaluation criteria and review process for applications. 

 
f. Response to specific questions from potential applicants.  

3.01.5  Single Source Funding Application  
City funding will be provided from one source only. No Outside Service Agency will be 
permitted to submit an application for City funding from more than one source of funds during a 
funding cycle. Programs eligible to receive CDBG funding may not apply for other City funding 
in addition to or in lieu of non CDBG funding. Applicants are required to attend the Unified Pre-
application workshop to assist them in the selection of the best single source of funds. 
  
City funding is limited by statute and regulatory rules for specific purposes. The City’s sources of 
funding to be granted to Outside Service Agencies are as follows:  
 

- Hotel Occupancy Tax which can be used for tourism development, arts, and event 
marketing.  

    
- General Fund may be used for programs and activities which meet the public 

purpose test for the expenditure of public funds.   
 

- Sanitation Fund may be used to support programs which reduce the waste stream 
and promotes the beautification of College Station.  

3.01.6  Grant Applications 
All applications for grants from the City must be in writing using the prescribed format and 
schedule established by the City Manager. Grant applications will contain the following 
elements:  
 
a. The Applicant must clearly demonstrate how the program meets the mission, vision, and 

values of the City of College Station.     
    
b. The Applicant must demonstrate they meet the Public Purpose Test for the expenditure of 

public funds.  
 
c. The Applicant must clearly demonstrate positive community impacts by submitting a 

Community Impact Statement.  

85



  
 

  Page 13 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

 
d. The Applicant must demonstrate its capability to generate necessary funds to sustain its 

operations outside the grant funding being requested from the City.  
 
e. The Applicant must be able to clearly demonstrate a 3 year past history and current request 

for funding to the City of Bryan and Brazos County if the grant request is represented to 
serve Brazos County.   

 
f. Grants to Agencies will be awarded on a program basis. The applicant must demonstrate the 

program delivers a specified service or activity which can be segmented and measured for 
results.  

 
g. Grant applications must be submitted in writing using the application form and format 

established by the City Manager. All applications must be submitted in hard copy at the 
location designated by the City Manager to receive grant applications. Grant applications 
will not be accepted via electronic transmission.  

 
h. Applications must be submitted by the deadline date established by the City Manager. 

Applications must be complete in all respects upon submittal. Incomplete or late applications 
will be returned and denied processing for the grant period for which they are submitted.  

 
i. Grant applications will be accepted for the upcoming funding cycle only. The City will not 

accept grant applications for any future funding period.   

3.01.7  Funding Period 
The City of College Station provides an initial grant for a one year period. Outside Service 
Agencies will receive funds for a single program for no more than three (3) years on a declining 
funding bases.  
 

b. Year 1    100% of initial funding   
c. Year 2               50%  of initial funding   
d. Year 3                      25%  of initial funding  

 
 
Once an Outside Service Agency  has exhausted its program funding eligibility, it may apply for 
new funds for a different program. In no event will multiple programs or activities be funded 
from the same agency during the same funding year.  

3.01.8  Hotel Occupancy Tax Funds Limitation  
Hotel Occupancy Tax funds are restricted in their use by state statues and the priority needs of 
the City of College Station. Hotel Occupancy Tax funds will be limited as follows:  
 
a. In no event will more than 45% of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds collected by the City of 

College Station be used to fund convention visitor, marketing, and tourism development 

86



  
 

  Page 14 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

activities. The balance of the funds collected will be dedicated to other eligible expenses, 
including the development of the College Station Convention Center and Hotel.  

 
b. In no event, will more than 15% of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds collected by the City of 

College Station be used for cultural arts programs in compliance with State statues. The 
balance of the Hotel Occupancy Tax funds will be dedicated to other eligible expenses, 
including the development of the College Station Convention Center and Hotel. 

3.02  Outside Social Service Agencies (non-CDBG eligible)  
Outside Social Service Agencies who are not eligible for CDBG funding may submit an 
application for other City funding if the Outside Social Service Agency meets the following 
criteria:  
 
a. The program must provide an essential service, serve a public purpose,  and is the only 

program providing such services in the College Station. 

b. Requests for funding ongoing administrative costs will not be considered. Funding will only 
be considered for program specific or capacity building activities. 

c. Social service programs may only be granted funding from the City of College Station for a 
maximum of three (3) years beginning in FY08 through the Outside Agency process. 

d. The program must meet the Sustainability Test as required by this policy.  

e. Clients served by a program must be primarily located in the College Station. Client intake 
forms or proof of clientele will be required. 

3.03  Tourism Development and Marketing Agencies  
It is recognized that various Community Organizations provide excellent tourism development 
and marketing programs beyond the comprehensive Bryan-College Station Convention Visitors 
Bureau (CVB) programs. As such, the City will consider applications from Agencies who desire 
program funding for tourism development and marketing community events and activities 
consistent with the statutory requirements for the use of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds.  
 
Tourism Development and Marketing Agencies may submit an application for Hotel Occupancy 
Tax funding if the Agency meets the following criteria:  
 
a. The program must provide a tourism development and marketing program consistent with 

State statues and not duplicated by the CVB programs. 

b. Requests for funding of ongoing general and administrative costs will not be considered. 
Funding will only be considered for program or capacity building activities. 

c. Tourism development and marketing programs may only be granted funding from the City 
of College Station for a maximum of three (3) years beginning in FY08 through the Outside 
Agency process. 

87



  
 

  Page 15 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

d. The program must primarily serve the College Station community. Programs which are 
regional in focus will not be funded since they are likely to duplicate CVB programs and 
activities.  

e. The program must meet the Sustainability Test as required by this policy.  

f. No more than 25% of a program’s budget may be used for general and administrative 
expenses. At least 75% of the Program’s budget must be dedicated to  program specific 
activity. 

3.04  Arts and Culture Agencies  
Arts and Culture programming is vital to the College Station community. While the City of 
College Station provides funding through ACBV to support arts and culture coordination 
activities, funding will be considered for Arts and Culture Agencies who do not qualify or 
participate in the Arts Council Affiliate program. Funding for non participants in the ACBV 
funding will be administered using the criteria set forth in this policy. If an agency receives funds 
as an Arts Council Affiliate, they will not be eligible to receive funds from any other City source 
of funds.  

3.04.1  Cultural Arts Agencies (Non ACBV Affiliates) Funding Criteria 
a. The program must provide a cultural arts program consistent with State statues regulating 

the use of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds and not duplicate programs funded through ACBV. 

b. Requests for funding of ongoing general and administrative costs will not be considered. 
Funding will only be considered for program specific activities. 

c. Cultural Arts programs may only be granted funding from the City of College Station for a 
maximum of three (3) years beginning in FY08 through the Outside Agency process. 

d. The program must meet the Sustainability Test as required by this policy.  

e. The program must primarily serve the College Station community. Programs which are 
regional in focus will not be funded since they are likely to duplicate ACBV programs and 
activities.  

f. No more than 25% of a program’s budget may be used for general and administrative 
expenses. At least 75% of the Program’s budget must be dedicated to  program specific 
activity. 

88



  
 

  Page 16 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

Section 4 – CDBG / Joint Relief Funding Review 
 

This section addresses Outside Public Service Agencies funded with 
CDBG funds through the Joint Relief Funding Review process 
between the City of College Station and the City of Bryan.  

89



  
 

  Page 17 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

4.00  CDBG Funded Agencies   
Agencies may qualify for CDBG funding based on criteria and guidelines established by the US 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Joint Relief Funding Review 
guidelines established by the cities of College Station and Bryan. Programs who qualify for Public 
Service funding under CDBG guidelines may not apply for City of College Station funding.  

4.01  CDBG / Joint Relief Funding Review Criteria  
The following criteria will be used to determine if a program is eligible for CDBG funding:  
 

a. The program must be located within the City limits of Bryan or College Station;  

b. The program or agency must have a non-profit status; 

c.     The program must serve and be able to document that a minimum of 51 percent of the 
requested funded program’s clientele is at or below 80 percent of the median income for 
Bryan/College Station (as defined by HUD);  

d. The program must provide evidence of ability to understand and comply with all 
applicable city, state, and federal regulations.   

4.02  CDBG Joint Relief Funding Review Process   
Agencies who have qualified programs for consideration of CDBG funding will participate in the 
Joint Relief Funding Review (JRFR) process. 

The cities of College Station and Bryan have established a policy that requires all programs 
submitting proposals for CDBG funds must participate in the Joint Relief Funding Review (JRFR) 
Process. By reference, this policy adopts the JRFR polices as amended February 23, 2006 and 
requires all agencies seeking CDBG funds to participate in the JRFR process.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90



  
 

  Page 18 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

Section 5 – Outside Agency Review Process  
 
 
 
This final section describes the review process for Outside Agency 
funding.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91



  
 

  Page 19 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

5.00  Outside Agency Review Process 
All applications for public funding, except as exempted by this policy, will be presented to the 
Council appointed Outside Agency Funding Review Committee.  
The Committee Chair in coordination with the City Manager will establish the review schedule 
for all completed applications to conduct public meetings for the purpose of preparing their 
recommendations for funding to the City Council.  

5.01  Outside Agency Review Committee Evaluation Criteria  
The Council appointed Outside Agency Funding Review Committee (OAFRC) will use the 
following criteria to evaluate applications coming before the Committee.  
 
a. The public purpose to be served by the program proposed for funding. Each program funded 

by the City of College Station must meet the purpose test established in this policy.  
 
b. Community impact. The program must have a substantive impact on the College Station 

community consistent with the mission and priorities established by the City Council.  
 
c. Compliance with requirements of the Outside Agency Funding Policy. The Committee will 

consider both the completeness and timeliness of the application in adherence to the 
requirements of this policy.  

 
d. Essential Service. The program must provide an essential service, serve a public purpose,  

and is the only program providing such services in the College Station. 
 
e. Sustainability Test. The program must demonstrate it has sufficient plans and capabilities to 

continue the program after City funding has expired. Programs which fail to meet the 
Sustainability Test will not be funded.  

 
f. Availability of funds. The Committee will be provided each year the total funding available 

to be allocated to Outside Service Agencies. The Committee will allocate funds to programs 
which they believe best serves the public interest and consistent with this policy.   

5.02  Outside Agency Review Committee Recommendations 
The Outside Agency Funding Review Committee (OAFRC) will prepare its recommendations 
and submit them to City Council identifying programs recommended for funding and funding 
amounts recommended. The OAFRC will also provide the City Council a written narrative which 
explains its rationale for its recommendations.   

5.03  Funding Outside Agency Request  
The City Manager is required by Charter to develop an annual budget which estimates the 
revenues and expenses for College Station city government. The City Manager will prepare an 
estimate of available funding to support the Council’s Outside Agency Funding Policy.  The City 

92



  
 

  Page 20 
Outside Agency Funding Policy 
City of College Station 

Final Draft 10/19/2006 

Council and Outside Agency Funding Review Committee will be provided the available funding 
estimate in writing together with the total dollar request from Outside Agencies.  

5.04  Funding Sources 
The City Manager will have the following sources of funds to fund the Council’s Outside Agency 
Funding Policy.  
 
§ Community Development Block Grant Funds limited to 15% of the total funds as required by 

HUD regulations.  
 
§ Hotel Occupancy Tax Funds limited by statutory restrictions and funds required for the 

City’s planned Convention Center and Hotel.  
 
§ General Fund limited to .5% of General Fund revenues less Return on Investment dollars 

remitted to General Fund.  
 
§ The total funds allocated to fund Outside Service Agencies will not exceed 85% of the 

available funds with the balance of the funds (15%) to be available for use by the City Council 
to support Council corporate sponsorship activities.  

 

93



 

NEW COVERSHEET FORMAT EXAMPLE 1 

November 9, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item # 

Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with Texas A&M University System for a 
Temporary Air Quality Monitoring Station in Lick Creek Park 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Steve Beachy, Director of Parks & Recreation 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding an amendment 
to extend an Interlocal Agreement with the Texas A&M University Department of 
Atmospheric Sciences for one additional year through October 31, 2007 for an air quality 
monitoring station located in Lick Creek Park. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the Interlocal 
Agreement to place a temporary air quality monitoring station and tower in Lick Creek Park. 
The original proposal was presented to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board on June 8, 
2004 for their discussion and consideration. At that time, the Board unanimously approved 
a motion in support of the request.  
 
The original presentation regarding this research project was made at the November 9, 
2004 City Council workshop and the initial Interlocal Agreement was approved at the 
December 9th, 2004 meeting. The current agreement expired on October 31, 2006 and this 
amendment will extend the agreement by one year. 
 
Summary:  This project is being conducted by the TAMU Department of Atmospheric 
Sciences in cooperation with The University of Texas and The University of Houston to 
continue to conduct a regional study of the effects on rural areas from air-borne pollution 
generated in the Houston/Galveston metro region through October 31, 2007. The study will 
provide a means to determine the levels of atmospheric pollutants entering College Station 
and will establish a data base for other research efforts in the area.  
 
The monitoring station is currently located west of the equestrian parking area (old gravel 
parking lot) and includes a fenced enclosure with a temporary tower that supports the 
monitoring equipment. The facility is screened by existing trees and has not changed the 
use of the park. It has had very minimal impact upon the park visitors. 
 
The study supports the City of College Station Strategic Plan through collaboration with 
other agencies, promotion of regionalism and promotion of the health, safety and general 
well being of the community. The project is coordinated by Dr. John Nielson-Gammon, 
Texas State Climatologist. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  All expenses related to the installation, operation and 
removal of the monitoring station and facilities are the responsibility of Texas A&M 
University. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with TAMU System dated January 13, 2005 
2. Location map 

94



TEXAS 

. * .."".-..-- -- A-- - .- - -. . . -- - - ..- 
rly@~- 6 A&M Syttem Bulld~ng, Su~te 1 15 1 200 Technology Way Cdlege sation. ~e&Fl7845-?424 

7 Phone 979,158.6)50 Tax 979 458.6359 Campus Mail Stop I I 20 - WeD ramus edu 

Tern7 ABM U~livr,t\~iy 

P~-;l,i? V i c ~  M M  Unvprsty 

la*lr*rr~t~ 51illF:Un1m1t? 

Te*sAAM Intemntlond U n w o r n  

In.,\ ARM Cl~-r{.Cwp~; :'hnr:~ 

n&M ; )<~~mr r . f -K rw l l e  1 
Mr. Steve Beachv 

October 9,2006 

Parks Dircctor . , 
City of College Station Parks and Recreation ' ,  I : 
PO Box 9960 
College Station, Texas 77842 7 .  

#- n -,- - 
- - 'b .  

THROUGH: Mr. Dan K. Buchly 
Associate Vice 

for Real Estate 

RE: Amendment to the First Interlocal ~~rearnhnt  Between The Texas A&M 
University System and the City of College Station of an Air Quality 
Monitoring Tower Located in Lick Creek Park Serving Texas A&M 
UniversiQ's Meteorological Department in Co 1 lege Station, Brazo s 
County, Texas. SWO File No. 07020002. 

I m r  V 1 l m r y  Mlel ' 
~ a h n r r l ~  I Dear Mr. Beachy: 

I 
I have enclosing the Amendmen! to !he First Interlocal Agreement Between The 
Texas AAM University System and the City of College Station of an air quality 
monitoring tower located in Lick Creek Park on Rock Creek Parkway serving 
Texas A&M University's Meteorological Dcparttnenlt in College Station, Brazos 
County, Texas. Please route the documents with the city OF College Station and 
return them to me for further handling. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact 
me at (979) 458-6350. 

I Very truly yours, 

Senior Real Estate Analyst 

I Enclosures 

! 

95



The Texas A&M University System 
Brazos County, Texas 

RE: LEASENO.: 
02 1-802-058 

THE TEXAS ARtM UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
FIRST INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

This First Interlocal Agreement Amendment ("First Amendment'') is made by and 
between the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION ("COLLEGE STATION'Y, and THE TEXAS 
A&M UNIVERSITY SYSTEM ("TAMUS"') an agency of the State of Texas, for the use and 
benefit of Texas A&M University, 

1. This First Amendment mends  and modifies the Interlocat Agreement (the "Agreement") 
between COLLEGE STATlON and TAMUS and pertaining to the property commonly 
h o w  as the Lick Creek Park, located on Rock Prairie Road, College Station, Brazos 
County, Texas. This property use agreement was dated January 13, 2005 and is due to 
expire on October 3 I ,  2006. 

2. COLLEGE STATlON and TAMUS expressly agree that the Agreement is amended 
and modified to allow the Agreement to be extended for a period of one year and expire 
on October 3 1,2007. 

3. All unmodified terms of the Agreement m a i n  in hIT. force and effect, subject only to 
mutually agreed upon adjustment continued in this First Amendment. 

EXECUTED in duplicate originals on this day of ,2006. 

"COLLEGE STATION" 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

RON STLVTA 
Mayor 

CONNIE BOOKS 
City Secretary ,.- .*... ..%. :., 

- - . - A  -. . ,. -a< ., K...-.,~L. --L:LL. -, 
, .. = - -  ... 
, , -;,. ' *  ."\ 

Prepard by ,\..*rrciatc belierat r o u n ~ l  
L l ~ k  Creek Ptirk Towct . ! '  : ,: ,- 

, , . - ,  ,Y7, . -: l : T ~ ~  f { + q j  !,I< <>; ;:,;-- 2 L t p l  F i le~  2LW-l10m1114 
, , , , I n , r / ~ - ~ n ~  

, - , Q:: .;'f<;?,i.;, 1;9f ;,!>.{?<:;T.t . + . - '  , ,  - .. , 

96



APPROVED: 

GLENN BROWN Date 
City Manager 

/ 

CARLA A. ROBINSON 
City Attorney 

Date 

JEFF KERSTEZV Dare 
Finance & Strategic Planning Director 

"TAMUS" 
'THE TEXAS A&M UNIVERSTTY SYSTEM 
for the use and benefit of Texas A&M University 

ROBERT T. BISOR, 111 
Associate Vice President for Finance and 
University Contracts Officer 
Texas A&M University 

S P M  42.05.03 REVIEWED: 

~ssocia td  Vice Chancellor fo 
System deal Estate Office 

AssociateGeneralCounsel 
Ofice of General Counsel 

h q w e d  bv ~ I & C  G& Counrel 
Lick Creek Park Towcr 

L.2pg.T Fl les zaKwow14 
IOf IWFIKj 

97



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

STATE OF TEXAS 8 
8 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS 8 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority a Notary Public for the State of Texas, on this 
day personally appeared RON SYLVIA, Mayor of College Station, known to me to be the 
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowIedged to me that he 
executed it for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, and in the capacity therein 
stated. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this day of 
,2006. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 
My Commission Expires: 

STATE OF TEXAS 8 
9 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS 5 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, 
on this day personally appeared ROBERT T. BTSOR, 111, Vice President for Finance and 
University Contracts Officer, Texas A&M University, known to me to be the person whose name 
is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed it for the 
purposes and consideration therein expressed, and in the capacity therein stated. 

GWEN UNDER MY IIAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this day of 
-I A.D. 2006. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 
My Commission Expires: 

Prepared by Assxiale General Counscl 
Lick Crek Park Tower 

Legal Filcs 2004.WW014 
I OI3IW-EDG 

98



99



November 9, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item 

Approval of the 2006 Property Tax Roll 
 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer                        
 
 

Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of the 2006 
Property Tax Roll in the amount of $17,811,835.17.  

 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the 2006 Property Tax Roll. 
  
Summary: Section 26.09 (e) of the Texas Property Tax Code mandates formal approval 
of the Tax Roll by the Council as the final step in the process of establishing the tax roll for 
the new year.  The Roll consists of the Maintenance and Operations levy in the amount of 
$7,742,514.80, and the Interest and Sinking fund levy in the amount of $10,069,320.37. 
 
This is the tax roll that will be generated by the tax rate of $0.4394 per $100 assessed 
valuation adopted by the City Council at its September 28, 2006 meeting.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: See above  
 
 
Attachments:   
 
Final Roll Report (The City of College Station is designated as C2 on the report.) 

100



Final Roll Report 

Date: 1011112006 Tax Year: 2006 

Levy Fund Totals 

1L % , L >  
-- v 

rali~nn-T&tirs~z-?~; w ,- :' a' - x . . .  r x = x ~ 7 2  : r A - A< 5~+"'* _t i 

' - i ** lw 
< - 

-" I j *  

lE:ng Levy Fund 

Taxing Unit 

Tax Rate Total Taxes Owed I 
Is1 Interest & Sinking - 0.26000000 9,471.738.761 

I Maintenance & Operations 1.37000000 49,908,776.541 

Total: 59,380,515.3 

2w~~~r:,4;27J;Q99 
-..A , L 3,f 78,526,252 1 1.63000000 7 r 59,380,515.30 961 (2,209.585.02) 

;_*,- %Zw ;.a" .>-"- . *i%:. _ P C  ** 
$p % -A',= &ST* -* * I " ' " m  d 

? 2.595.801.44 
C1 49,437 3,014,467,983 27.125 86,542.061 2,927,925,922 0.63640000 18,633,317.53 49.201 0.00 

Number of 
Properties 

Ic1 lnterest & Sinking 

I Maintenance & Operations 

I 

0.1 81 90000 

0.45450000 

Total: 

Total 
Assessed 

Value 

I 
. - , . I 

C2 - I- - Maintenance & Operations 0.191 00000 7,742,514.801 

Printed on 1011 1M006 at 12:45 PM 

Exemptions 
Number Total 

of Properties Amount 
Total Taxable 

Value Tax Rate Total Taxes Owed 

Credit Adjustments 
Number of Total Credit 

Freeze 

101



. . --- 
7 - m , ; g ,  8 p 

s:,("g;:;,g, 0 m. m 
.:,!:,,.;,m ::cn 
: ,  , , w B X 

"3,,! ;'&-? *; 
j.,?!,) I;. 

;;,$ >>.<,* &;,y$!!~j: ?.::z$::,m E2- 
&7rj.. .... !:4!q*:p;;$K : ...x-...*... :.' , ;,,: ,,,: 2y324;:;::k%:i *: ,,%... : " ..m.<s>>!..- %. ,$+.,,.. <. ..... l..a.~,.:,; 2g$,?!"y<>32>>,! 

:< .: 
y*q';:t.:; .x.w.i:$: : .. $;?...,. . -.a i .. %i,;i;'.i. , . "".'. . 
:. ;#~:;p;:i,;. %.. ' ,,. :, ..:;:>;<;: ,::.>' 
..i.",i:i:': . " ... 

":*,,x. s .  ,.:..??,,>;. :!'&":::".r;.;: ;:. ., 
r % . T  y:.,;;::: . ,: i::: . . . .  . "" ..: ,.,: :; ...... 
> .  +s;,: ....... .;:.: p :  .... > . ,... >,!& . . . .  

-- 

102



 

 

November 9, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Police Motorcycle Purchase 
 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Michael Clancey, Chief of Police                   
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, discussion and possible action on the purchase of seven 
(7) police motorcycles from Independence Harley Davidson of College Station for the 
amount of $140,337.26.  Bid Number 07-10. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Recommend award to the lowest, responsible bidder meeting 
specifications, Independence Harley Davidson, a local dealership. 
 
 
Summary:  This purchase is a scheduled replacement of seven (7) Harley Davidson police 
motorcycles.  We received two (2) bids, one from Independence Harley Davidson of College 
Station, TX and the other from Renegade Harley Davidson of Alexandria, LA.  While 
Renegade provided a guaranteed buy back option and a trade-in option, Independence 
Harley Davidson is the lower bidder and performs all mechanical maintenance on the 
motorcycles regardless of their purchased location.  Therefore, the Staff recommends to 
stay local with Independence Harley Davidson. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The purchase of these motorcycles will be funded out of 
the Fleet Replacement Fund. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1.)  Bid Tabulation Sheet 

103



unit price total unit price total

7 Purchase Price $20,048.18 $140,337.26 $21,000.00 $147,000.00

Make

Model

7

Guaranteed 
Repurchase Price (in 
2 years - '07 bikes) N/B N/B $10,500.00 $73,500.00

7 Trade-In ('05 bikes) N/B N/B $10,500.00 $73,500.00

Seven (7) Police Motorcycles
Bid No. 07-10

Independence HD Renegade HD

FLHTP HD FLHTP1

2007 2007

104



 
 

Draft Minutes 
City Council Workshop and Regular Meetings 

Thursday, October 23, 2006, 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Silvia, Mayor Pro Tem White, Council 
members Happ, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary 
Hooks, Assistant City Secretary Casares, Management Team  
 
Mayor Silvia called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m.  Chief Information Officer Olivia 
Burnside described the new audio/visual equipment installed in the Council Chambers. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 1 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
items listed on the consent agenda. 
 
No items were removed for discussion. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 2 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion 
regarding an update on Convention and Visitor Bureau activities and Wayfinding. 
 
Chief Executive Officer Barry Biggar from the Convention and Visitors Bureau 
presented a status update on the Convention and Visitors activities and wayfinding study  
for College Station and Bryan.   
 
No formal action was taken. 
 
Council recessed for a short break at 4:22 p.m. and reconvened the workshop meeting at 
4:35 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 3 – Presentation, possible action, and discussion 
approving a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Bryan/College 
Station Metropolitan Planning Organization, Brazos County, The City of Bryan, 
The City of College Station and Texas A&M University in regards to a Regional 
concept of Transportation Operations for the Brazos Valley. 
 

105



Council Meeting 10/23/06  Page 2 

Director of Public Works Mark Smith made opening remarks regarding the 
Memorandum of Understanding and introduced Kevin Balke, P.E., PH.D., Director of 
TransLind Research Center, Texas Transportation Institute. 
 
Mr. Balke presented a brief summary of the Regional Concept of Transportation 
operations priorities.   
 
Mr. Smith described the Memorandum of Understanding between Bryan/College Station 
Metropolitan Planning Organization, Brazos County, The City of Bryan, The City of 
College Station and Texas A&M University pertaining to regional concept of 
transportation operations for the Brazos Valley.   
 
Council member Scotti moved to approve the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between Bryan/College Station Metropolitan Planning Organization, Brazos County, The 
City of College Station, The City of Bryan, and Texas A&M University.  Mayor Pro Tem 
White seconded the motion. 
 
Council member Scotti amended the motion to approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) contingent on all partners involved approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU).  Mayor Pro Tem White seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously, 7-0. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 4 – Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the 
implementation of a neighborhood forum fostering dialogue between citizens, Council 
members and staff. 
 
Chief Information Officer Olivia Burnside described the implementation of a neighborhood 
forum fostering dialogue between the citizens of College Station, Council members and staff.   
 
Economic and Community Development Director David Guinn spoke of his previous experiences 
on neighborhood forums.   
 
After a brief discussion, City Council directed staff to move forward with the implementation of a 
Neighborhood forum fostering dialogue between citizens of College Station, Council members 
and staff.   
 
Council member Gay noted he was not in support of the implementation of a neighborhood forum 
because the City has success if communicating with citizens in current programs and the tools to 
receive feedback from neighborhoods.     
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 5 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future 
agenda items: A Council Member may inquire about a subject for which notice has 
not been given.  A statement of specific factual information or the recitation of 
existing policy may be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a proposal to 
place the subject on an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 

106



Council Meeting 10/23/06  Page 3 

 
This item was postponed to the regular meeting. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No.6 – Council Calendars 
 
This item was postponed to the regular meeting.   
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 7 -- Discussion, review and possible action regarding the 
following meetings:  Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of 
Governments, Cemetery  Committee, City Center, CSISD/City Joint Meeting, 
Design Review Board,  Fraternal Partnership, Historic Preservation 
Committee, Interfaith Dialogue  Association, Intergovernmental Committee and 
School District, Joint Relief  Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, 
Making Cities Livable Conference,  Metropolitan Planning Organization, Outside 
Agency Funding Review, Parks and Recreation Board, Planning and Zoning 
Commission, Sister  City Association, TAMU Student Senate,  Research Valley 
Partnership, Regional Transportation Committee for Council of Governments, 
Transportation  Committee, Wolf Pen Creek Oversight Committee, Wolf Pen 
Creek TIF Board, Zoning Board of Adjustments. 
 
This item was postponed until after the regular meeting. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 8 -- Executive Session will immediately follow the 
workshop meeting in the Administration Conference Room  
 
At 5:58 p.m., Mayor Silvia announced in open session that the City Council would 
convene into executive session pursuant to Sections 551.071 of the Open Meetings Act, 
to seek the advice of our attorney with respect to pending and contemplated litigation. 
 
Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071}; possible action  The City Council 
may seek advice from its attorney regarding a pending and contemplated litigation subject or 
settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  Litigation is an ongoing process and 
questions may arise as to a litigation tactic or settlement offer, which needs to be discussed with 
the City Council.  Upon occasion the City Council may need information from its attorney as to 
the status of a pending or contemplated litigation subject or settlement offer or attorney-client 
privileged information.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be 
in public.   
a. TCEQ Docket No. 2002-1147-UCR, Applications of Brushy Water Supply and 
 College Station (Westside/Highway 60) 
b. TCEQ Docket No. 2003-0544MWD, Application of Nantucket, Ltd. 
c. TXU Lone Star Gas Rate Request. 
d. Cause No. 03-002098-CV-85, Brazos County, College Station v. Wellborn Special 
 Utility District 
e. Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, 
 Houston Division, College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn 
 Special Utility District 
f. Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, 
 Houston Division, JK Development v. College Station 
g. GUD No. 9530 – Gas Cost Prudence Review, Atmos Energy Corporation 

107



Council Meeting 10/23/06  Page 4 

h. GUD No. 9560 – Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate increases, 
 Atmos Energy Corporation  
i. Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed 
 Intervention 7/6/05) 
j. Cause No. 06-000703-CV-85, Patricia Moore, et al. v. Ross Stores, Inc., 
 City of College Station, et al. 
k. Possible settlement water CCN with Wellborn 
l. Possible settlement of sewer CCN issue 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 9 -- Final Action on executive session, if necessary.  
 
Council returned from executive session at 6:45 p.m.  No action was taken 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 10 --Adjourn.  
 
The workshop session concluded at 6:46 p.m. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 11 – Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider Absence 
Request 
 
Mayor Silvia called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. with all council members present.  He led 
the audience in the pledge of allegiance.   
 
Hear Visitors 
 
Council did not receive any public comments. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

Vision Statement I - Core Services   
Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 

through innovation and planning. 
 
Council member Happ moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 12.1 – 12.9.  Mayor Pro 
Tem White seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
12.1 Approved by common consent the minutes for the College Station City Council 

meetings of July 20, 2006, August 14, 2006, August 22, 2006, August 23, 2006, 
August 31, 2006, September 28, 2006, and October 12, 2006. 

 
12.2 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-23-2006-12.02 approving the 

Comprehensive Selective Traffic Enforcement Program grant contract in the 
amount of $51,624 for fiscal year 2007. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A TEXAS HIGHWAY TRAFFIC 
SAFETY PROGRAM GRANT AGREEMENT FOR THE COMPREHENSIVE 

108



Council Meeting 10/23/06  Page 5 

SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM WITH THE TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 
 
12.3 Approved by common consent Bid 06-146 for the purchase of EMS supplies for 

the Fire Department ambulance service in the amount of $53,738.19.    
 
12.4 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-23-2006-12.04 accepting the 

Governors Division of Emergency Management (GDEM) the 2006 Homeland 
Security Grant Program Sub-recipient of $80,502.85, approving the Election 
Regarding State Use of Homeland Security Grant Funding for Statewide Local 
Projects, and naming a City staff member as manager of those grant funds.  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLELGE STATION, 
TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 2006 HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM 
SUB-RECIPIENT AWARD FOR THE PURCHASE OF RESPONSE EQUIPMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING A CONTACT PERSON FOR THE CITY. 
 
12.5 Approved by common consent project change orders 2 & 3 to contract 06-034 

with W.W. Payton Corporation for increased well production capacity.  These 
combined change orders total $32,732 and elevate the project’s cumulative value 
of all change orders to $35,532. 

 
12.6 Approved by common consent a settlement agreement with Ms. Stella Wilkes, 

second of three agreements that will allow the City to pursue approval from 
TCEQ of our application to extend our sewer certificated area into the ETJ.  

 
12.7 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-23-2006-12.07 awarding a 

design contract 05-030, Engineering for Carter’s Creek Ultra-Violet Disinfection 
System Improvements to Camp, Dresser, McKee Inc. in the amount of $94,120. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLELGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR THE CARTERS CREEK WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT ULTRAVIOLET DISINFECTION SYSTEM IMPROVMENTS 
PROJECT.   
 
12.8 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-23-2006-12.08 adopting an 

updated Water Conservation Plan, including goals required by TCEQ. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, ADOPTING AN AMENDED CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, WATER 
CONSERVATION PLAN AS REQUIRED BY THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (TCEQ). 
 

109



Council Meeting 10/23/06  Page 6 

12.9 Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-23-2006-12.09 awarding a 
Professional Services Contract to Lockwood, Andrews, & Newnam, Inc. (LAN, Inc.), in 
the amount of $54,840.00, for the design of the Corsair Drive (AMS Road) Extension 
project. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR THE 
CONCEPTUAL, PRELIMINARY, AND FINAL DESIGNS OF THE CORSAIR DRIVE 
(AMS ROAD) EXTENSION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 13.1 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion regarding an ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan land use 
designation for approximately 0.44 acres located at 2201 Texas Avenue South from 
Single-Family Residential – High Density to Regional Retail.   
 
This item was removed from the agenda by the applicant. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 13.2 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion regarding an ordinance rezoning approximately .44 acres located at 2201 
Texas Avenue South from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to C-1 (General 
Commercial). 
 
This item was removed from the agenda by the applicant. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 13.3 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
approval of expenditures for administrative fees for employee medical and dental 
insurance with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Texas, employee prescription drug plan 
with Pharmacare, and employee assistance program with Interface EAP and the 
approval of expenditures for projected claims for a total amount of $4,652,205 for 
2007. 
 
 
Director of Human Resources Julie O’Connell presented a brief summary of regular 
agenda items 13.3, 13.4, 13.5, and 13.6. 
 
Council member Happ moved to approve expenditures for administrative fees for 
employee medical and dental insurance with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Texas, employee 
prescription drug plan with Pharmacare, and employee assistance program with Interface 
EAP and the approval of expenditures for projected claims for a total amount of 
$4,652,202 for 2007.  Mayor Pro Tem White seconded the motion which carried by a 
vote of, 6-0-1. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, Gay, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSTAINED:  McIlhaney 

110



Council Meeting 10/23/06  Page 7 

 
Regular Agenda Item No. 13.4 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion of 
approval of expenditures of $272,516 for stop-loss insurance with Blue Cross Blue 
Shield of Texas for our self-funded employee medical plan for 2007. 
 
Council member Happ moved to approve expenditures of $272,516 for stop-loss 
insurance with Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas for self-funded employee medical plan 
for 2007.  Mayor Pro Tem White seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of, 6-0-1. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, Gay, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSTAINED:  McIlhaney 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 13.5 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
approval of expenditures for employee life, accidental death & dismemberment 
(AD&D), voluntary life and AD&D, and dependent life insurance in the amount of 
$89,916 with Standard Insurance Company for 2007. 
 
Council member Happ moved to approve the expenditures for employee life, accidental 
death & dismemberment (AD&D), voluntary life and AD&D, and dependent life 
insurance in the amount of $89,916 with Standard Insurance Company for 2007.  Mayor 
Pro Tem White seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of, 6-0-1. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, Gay, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSTAINED:  McIlhaney 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 13.6 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
approval of expenditures for long term disability insurance (LTD) with Standard 
Insurance Company in the amount of $55,800 for 2007. 
 
Council member Happ moved to approve the expenditures for long term disability 
insurance (LTD) with Standard Insurance Company in the amount of $55,800 for 2007.  
Mayor Pro Tem White seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of, 6-0-1. 
 
FOR:  Silvia, White, Happ, Gay, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSTAINED:  McIlhaney 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 5 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future 
agenda items: A Council Member may inquire about a subject for which notice has 
not been given.  A statement of specific factual information or the recitation of 
existing policy may be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a proposal to 
place the subject on an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 
 

111



Council Meeting 10/23/06  Page 8 

Council member Happ inquired about an agenda item that he requested regarding a new 
City Hall.  After a brief discussion, the consensus of the City Council was to bring this 
item back before the City Council. 
 
Mayor Silvia noted that Mr. Hugh Stearns, citizen of College Station, recently requested 
that the City of College Station post elected officials campaign reports and other election 
related materials on the City’s web-site.  No motion was made to approve the request. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 6 – Council Calendars 
 
Oct. 23  Intergovernmental Committee Meeting – Noon – Brazos County 
Oct. 24   Legislative Outlook Forum (Annenberg Presidential Conf. Center) 8:00 

a.m. to Noon 
Oct. 25 – 28 TML Annual Conference – Austin 
Oct. 26   Walk Our Walk, Talk Our Talk Luncheon – CSISD Sponsored – A&M 

Consolidated Middle School 105 Holik Street – 11:30 a.m. 
Oct. 30   United Way Cook Out at Central Park -11:00 -1:00  
Nov. 2   Chamber Annual Banquet 5:30 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. Hilton 
Nov. 6 - 7 -06  Tourism Security Conference, 8:00 am Hilton 
Nov. 9   Council Workshop and Regular Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
Nov. 12  Veteran’s Day Ceremony at Veteran’s Park 2:00 p.m. 
Nov. 18  Employee Banquet 6:00 p.m. – 10:00 p.m. – Brazos Center 
Nov. 20  Intergovernmental Committee Meeting – City of Bryan – Noon 
Nov. 20  Council Workshop and Regular meeting 3:00 pm  
Nov. 21  Transportation Committee Meeting – 4:30 p.m. – Administrative 

Conference Room 
Nov. 23-24 City Offices Closed for Thanksgiving Holiday 
 
Council reviewed their upcoming events. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 7 -- Discussion, review and possible action regarding the 
following meetings:  Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of 
Governments, Cemetery Committee, City Center, CSISD/City Joint Meeting, 
Design Review Board, Fraternal Partnership, Historic Preservation Committee, 
Interfaith Dialogue  Association, Intergovernmental Committee and School 
District, Joint Relief  Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, Making 
Cities Livable Conference,  Metropolitan Planning Organization, Outside Agency 
Funding Review, Parks and Recreation Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, 
Sister  City Association, TAMU Student Senate,  Research Valley Partnership, 
Regional Transportation Committee for Council of Governments, Transportation 
Committee, Wolf Pen Creek Oversight Committee, Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board, 
Zoning Board of Adjustments. 
 
Council member Happ made brief comments about the Transportation and 
Intergovernmental Committee meetings held this month.   
 
Council member Scotti presented information about the RVP monthly meeting.   

112



Council Meeting 10/23/06  Page 9 

Regular Agenda Item No. 14 – The City Council may convene the executive session 
following the regular meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session 
agenda for October 23, 2006. 
 
Council concluded the executive session prior to the regular meeting. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 15 – Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 16 – Adjourn 
 
Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. on Thursday, October 23, 
2006. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED on the 9th day of November. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
      ________________________ 
      Mayor Ron Silvia 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks 

113



 

 

November 9, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

Presentation of a Statement of Support for the Guard and Reserve 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Steve Beachy, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a Statement of 
Support for the Guard and Reserve 
 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends acceptance of the Statement of Support for the 
Guard and Reserve and continued support for employees who volunteer to serve in the 
National Guard or Reserve forces of our military. 
 
 
Summary: The City of College Station has several employees who are members of the 
National Guard and Reserve forces. Their service, along with that of thousands of other 
citizen soldiers, sailors, marines, coast guard and air force members, is vital to the security 
of the United States.  
 
The City of College Station has demonstrated exceptional support for their service by 
adopting policies that are consistent with existing laws as well as providing additional 
benefits beyond those basic requirements. In addition, a team of City employees has 
volunteered to work with the State-wide ESGR (Employer Support of the Guard and 
Reserve) organization to assist our service members, families and City departments as 
needed during active duty deployments and routine training periods.  
 
The City of College Station has been recognized as "FIVE STAR" employer because of this 
demonstrated level of support. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. STATEMENT OF SUPPORT FOR THE GUARD AND RESERVE 
2. Memorandum from Julie O'Connell 
3. Current Members of National Guard and Reserve 

 

114



115



116



 
City of College Station, Texas 

Current Members of National Guard or Reserves 
AS OF: November 06 

 
NAME  RANK SERVICE BRANCH & UNIT  DEPT. 
 
Linda Matos  STAFF SGT Army Reserve, 420th ENG BDE  Police 
 
Jeff Durham  LT COL Air Force Reserve, 99th SFG  Police 
 
David Newman CAPTAIN Army Reserve, 302nd MP Co  Police  
 
John Ortiz  CPL  Army Reserve, 211th Mpad   Police 
 
Tony Ruiz  SGT  Marine Reserve, 1st BN/23rd, 24th DIV  Parks& Rec 
 
Juan Verduquez* SGT  Texas Army NG, 36th INF DIV  Parks & Rec 
 
Jamesia Redwine* 2nd LT  Army Reserve, 101st Airborne DIV  Parks & Rec 
 
Canaan Blake CAPTAIN Texas Army NG, 36th INF DIV  Fire 
 
John LeBlanc  CAPTAIN Army Reserve, 420th ENG BDE  Fire 
 
Donald Davis  MAJOR Army Reserve, IRR, 1st PERSCOM Info Services 
 
  *CURRENTLY ON ACTIVE DUTY 
 
College Station ESGR (Employer Support of the Guard & Reserve) Team: 
 
Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer 
 
Ben Roper, Assistant Director of Information Technology 
 
Marita O'Dell, Organizational Development Specialist 
 
Brian Hilton, Emergency Management Coordinator 
 
Steve Beachy, Director of Parks & Recreation 
 
Peter Lamont, Recreation Superintendent 
 
David Coleman, Assistant Director of Water Services 

117



 

 

November 9, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Partnership for Inclusive Communities 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                      
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving a resolution for 
the City of College Station's participation in Partnership for Working Toward Inclusive 
Communities, a program sponsored by the National League of Cities. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Staff recommends approval of the resolution for the City to join 
the Partnership for Working Toward Inclusive Communities. 
 
 
Summary: This partnership is expected to: 

• Raise awareness and focus attention on the importance and value of inclusive 
communities 

• Motivate cities and towns to make a public commitment to building inclusive 
communities 

• Provide support to local officials in focused efforts around affordable housing, race 
and ethnic relations and equal citizen participation in decision-making 

• Share valuable insights, experience, and lessons learned among the participating 
cities 

• Recognize, publicize, and celebrate the work of cities and towns that join the 
partnership 
 

 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The City is already providing programs and projects that 
work toward inclusiveness.  No additional funding is required.  
 
 
Attachments:   
Resolution to Work Toward Inclusive Community       
 
 

118



O/group/legal/resolutions/narcotics.doc 
10/30/2006 

 
RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A PARTNERSHIP FOR WORKING TOWARD INCLUSIVE 
COMMUNITIES.  
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, is committed to 
inclusion as a fundamental aspect of our community; and acknowledges that cities and 
towns are the best place to make inclusiveness an everyday priority; and local elected 
officials can and should lead the way forward in making inclusiveness a priority in 
America’s cities and towns; and 
 
WHEREAS, the National League of Cities has designed the Partnership for Working 
Toward Inclusive Communities to support cities and towns in their commitment to 
inclusion; and the National League of Cities and its members believe an inclusive 
community promotes equal opportunity and fairness, citizen participation and engagement; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the National League of Cities has invited local officials to join the Partnership 
for Working Toward Inclusive Communities and to make a commitment to building more 
inclusive communities in their own cities and towns; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS:  
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby reaffirms its commitment to inclusion as a 

fundamental aspect of our community and pledges active efforts to seek to 
achieve that goal.  

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby joins the Partnership for Working Toward 

Inclusive Communities.   
 
PART 2: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

 
 
 

ADOPTED this ___________ day of November, A.D. 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 

119



O/group/legal/resolutions/narcotics.doc 
10/30/2006 

ATTEST:     APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________  __________________________________ 
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary  RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

__________________________ 
City Attorney 

120



 

November 9, 2006 
Regular Agenda Item 

General Obligation Bond Refunding 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on an ordinance 
authorizing the issuance and sale of City of College Station, Texas General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$15,000,000; approving the form of a preliminary official statement; selecting underwriters 
for the bonds; and ordaining other matters related thereto, including immediate 
effectiveness. 
 
Recommendation(s): Council move to approve the attached ordinance authorizing 
the issuance and sale of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006; preliminary 
official statement; selection of underwriters for the bonds, and ordaining other matters 
related thereto, including immediate effectiveness.  
 
Summary:  The City has the opportunity to refund a portion of its General Obligation 
Bonds in order to achieve savings due to lower interest rates that are available currently.  
The City's Financial Advisor, Drew Masterson with First Southwest Company has presented 
the City with an opportunity to issue refunding bonds for several of our outstanding General 
Obligation Bond issues.  Refunding is issuing new debt to replace and pay off existing debt.  
Refunding can be done for a number of reasons; however, most often are used to accrue a 
savings against the current debt.  
 
The bonds that are proposed to be refunded are:  

General Obligation & Refunding Bonds, Series 1996  $1,860,000 
General Obligation, Series 1998     $2,705,000 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2000    $1,685,000 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2000   $3,935,000 

 
The City Council's Finance and Budgetary Policies allow for the City to "refund" debt when 
there is a net present value savings of at least 5%.  The opportunity that is currently before 
the City Council will save the City approximately 4.67% over the remaining life of the 
issues.  The net present value savings includes the debt issuance costs.  If this ordinance 
is approved the City Council will be delegating to the City Manager the authority to 
effect the bond sale when the net present value savings hits the 5% threshold 
through May 31, 2007.  This will provide an opportunity to reach the 5% threshold 
over the next 6 months, in order to generate as much savings as possible for the 
City.   
 
Refundings are typically done as negotiated sales rather than our normal bidding process.  
In a negotiated sale, a consortium of investment firms is selected with one firm named as 
the managing partner for the sale.  The sale is negotiated and pricing is verified against 
pricing for similar instruments within a few days of the actual sale date to make sure that 
the City is getting good pricing for its debt. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   The refunding will reduce the overall cost of the refunded 
bonds by at least 5% over the remaining life of the existing bonds.  Total net present value 
savings will be at least $473,345.17 against actual savings of at least $612,408.35.  Annual 
actual savings will range between at least $17,948.89 and $56,303.76 per year.  The 

121



 

savings will help the City by providing an additional margin that Council may choose to use 
for projects not currently funded by an identified source.   
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Ordinance authorizing the issuance and sale of City of College Station, Texas General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006A, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$15,000,000; approving the form of a preliminary official statement; selecting underwriters 
for the bonds; and ordaining other matters related thereto, including immediate 
effectiveness.   

122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



 

 

November 9, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

Recycling Collection Program 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, and discussion of the City of College Station Recycling 
Collection Program. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): N/A 
 
 
Summary: The presentation will update the City Council on the City of College Station 
Recycling Program. Staff will present current performance data, the recent addition of 
accepted commodities, and the economic feasibility for the addition of white office paper as 
a collected material. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments: 

1. Staff Analysis – White Paper Recycling Collection 
2. Recycling Survey Charts 
3. Recycling Survey Comments 
4. White Paper Collection Cost Quote 

 
 
 
 

152



 
 
MEMORANDUM 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
From:  Pete Caler, Assistant Director Public Works/BVSWMA Director  
CC:   Terry Childers, Deputy City Manager 

Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
  Wally Urrutia, Sanitation Superintendent 
  Dawn Self, Recycling Coordinator 
Date:  November 2, 2006 
Subject: Staff Analysis – White Paper Recycling Collection 
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an analysis pertaining to a City Council request for 
the addition of white office paper as a material collected by the curbside recycling program. 
 
Estimated cost for the addition of white paper to curbside recycling program: 
Texas Commercial Waste (TCW), the recycling collection franchisee, has responded to a staff 
request for an informal quote on the cost to add white paper to the curbside recycling program. 
The quote is an additional $1.50 per household, which would increase the total amount paid to 
TCW for recycling collection from $2.15 to $3.65 per household, per month. Adding white paper 
collection would increase contracted services for recycling by approximately $25,000 per month or 
$300,000 per year. The quote from Texas Commercial Waste is attached to this memorandum. 
 
Alternatives for Citizens that wish to recycle white paper and other fiber products: 
College Station residents can take commodities not accepted in the curbside program to the City of 
Bryan Drive-In Recycling Center or Texas A&M University Recycling Center. The Bryan Recycling 
Center is open seven days per week and accepts white paper and cardboard. The Texas A&M 
Recycling Center accepts white ledger paper, white mixed paper, office paper, mixed paper, 
newspaper, magazines, cardboard, and boxboard. This center is open to the public Monday-
Friday. The primary reason that acceptance of paper materials is economically feasible for these 
facilities is the presence of staff at the collection point, who can sort grades of paper as they are 
delivered.  
 
Pros and Cons of adding residential white paper recycling: 
Pros- The addition of any commodity is a positive change for the recycling program and will result 
in some type of increase in the diversion of material from the landfill. Public perception about the 
program would be enhanced as more commodities are added, availability is expanded, or the 
setout process is made to be more convenient for the customer. 
Cons- The current contractor has commented to staff that family households generate a very small 
amount of white sorted ledger (WSL). This type of paper is normally generated at schools, 
municipal buildings, and commercial establishments. Residential customers generate a mixed 
paper grade, which, if mixed with newspaper and magazines allows a risk upon delivery that the 
material will be rejected by the paper mill in Waco, causing the load to be transported back to 
College Station and landfilled. The quote received from TCW would add an increase of $1.50 to a 

153



 
customer’s monthly solid waste fee, for a potentially low rate of return on the amount of white paper 
recycled for revenue.  
 
Recycling Survey Results: 
A non-scientific survey was posted during the month of August on the city website. The survey was 
publicized in the local media and received about 300 responses. Based on the survey, 80% of the 
residents participating in the curbside recycling program are satisfied. Dissatisfaction with the 
program is attributable to lack of services for apartment complexes and the inconvenience caused 
by the bag system in comparison to single stream collection. In order of preference, residents want 
to see cardboard (22.91%), plastic grocery bags (22.57%), solid colored plastic bottles (18.06%), 
mixed paper (15.12%), and white office paper (13.66%) added to the curbside program. The 
contractor has recently added colored plastic bottles to the program. When asked if they use the 
Bryan Drive-In Recycling Center, 30% said yes and 84% say they would use a similar recycling 
facility if it was located College Station. The survey charts are attached to this memorandum, along 
with numerous citizen comments in a separate document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

154



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (2 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

155



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (3 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

156



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (4 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

157



NSurvey

   

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (5 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

158



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (6 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

159



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (7 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

160



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (8 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

161



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (9 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

162



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (10 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

163



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (11 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

164



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (12 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

165



NSurvey

 

 

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (13 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

166



NSurvey

 

 

Powered by NSurvey (1.9.1.0) - The web survey and form engine 
(c) 2004, 2005 Thomas Zumbrunn. All rights reserved.

http://webone/NSurvey/NSurveyAdmin/ResultsReporting.aspx?surveyid=3&menuindex=6 (14 of 14)9/6/2006 4:36:38 PM

167

http://www.nsurvey.org/


Overall I am very pleased w/ the city's recycling program

Dawn is the best recycling coordinator ever!

perhaps the use of one container for all recyclables as it is done on the west coast 
might work better in getting a large population to recycle. Bags can be troublesome.

It's nice that the Bryan Walmart location has more recycling options available than 
the curbside College Station pickup, but the location is inconvient for College 
Station residents. It would be nice if there was a College Station recycling location 
drop-off for items that aren't included in curbside pickup.

It would be nice if the recycling was picked up.  I've had recycling bags dumped in 
the yard, called sanitation NUMEROUS times to pick up the recycling, but it 
NEVER happens.  Half the time my trash isn't even picked up!

I wish more people in my neighborhood recycled.  College Station needs a 
apartment program or a drive-in like Bryan.

Keep up the good job! 

While realizing that it is just not a CS issue, the hazardous waste recycling day is 
wonderful!  However, only 2 times a year?  Who (besides me) stores old TVs out 
behind their shed waiting for the next day 4 months away?  And, why have them in 
the middle of the semester?  College kids can't wait to get rid of stuff... Add a 
couple of days that coincide to the end of the semesters so that the kids can safely 
move out.  Also, you don't have listed on the haz waste website that you accept 
TVs... that seems silly to me.  I called and asked, I would think adding it to the page 
would be easier.



However, I am very happy that CS has any recycling facility at all.  I would rather 
have curbside with bins than drive-through - and more people are likely to 
participate if they don't have to go any further than the end of their driveway.

Doing a good job--could be much better!

Keep up the good work

I think it's great that College Station is requesting input for future recycling 
programs--this is a fantastic start!  Are there similar college towns to which CS 
could compare (eg. Austin)?

above.

I used to recycle. However, I repeatedly put my recycling out in the designated 
clear plastic bags on Wednesday night or Thursday morning, only to come home 
Friday evening to find the recycling still there. I gave up because it just wasn't worth 
my effort to sort, bag, carry out all the bags and then carry them back only to store 
them for another week without pick up or throw them in the garbage.

Comments

Recycling Department Survey
Recycling Text Answers

168



I am thankful that college station offers curbside recycling.


I put my recyling stuff on curbside but you did not collect it often. So, I have to stop 
this programme.

If recycling was availabe I would use it. Having to save my recycling for one trip a 
month takes up a lot of space that I don't have in a small townhouse. If service 
could be given in a system similar to the small dumpster units I currently use I 
would be more open to recycling.

I am thankful that we have curbside pick up. 

Keep up the good work!

All in all, the program is fairly successful and should be improved upon where 
possible.



I am one of many who wonder what the economic feasibility of this program is.  A 
scond thought is that if all recyclables are combined into one bin, it seems like the 
cost of separating it would be quite high.

Thanks for asking.

glad to see recycling going on.  dawn self rules!

I would like more information about what is really required.  For example, I know 
that officially you want the plastic rings removed from bottles, but they are almost 
impossible to get off without serious injury.  I just recycle without removing them but 
I wonder if they are just thrown away or if removing the rings is not really 
necessary.

If you have to pay people to use it ($250 winners for recyling), it probably means 
that the city could use the money to better advantage elsewhere. I am in favor of 
recycling more items than the city currently picks up. Just make the drop off point 
centrally located and advertise where it is and hours of operation.

I think recycling is very important, and I would recycle more if there was an easy 
way to do it.

Great program.  Thanks for your effort.

Am really happy you all do curbside recycling. Keep up the good work and thank 
you.

It would be great if there was a drive through recycling center where we could drop 
things off in addition to the weekly curbside pickups.



You all do a great job.   Please keep up the good work.

How about electric vehicles for collection?

don't stop improving the program

I appreciate the efforts of CS to recycle and hope to see the program growing


169



Good job.

need to expand recycling to includ things like asphat shingles

Keep up the good work and a wonderful civic program.

Hazardous waste pickup/events should be added/advertised.

My aluminum cans are still being stolen from the curb.  It would also be nice to 
have a sort of loyalty prize for the year as well as the regular $250 award.  
Consistent recycling using only full bags should be desirable.  Just a thought.

More than anything else the city needs to work with TAMU on coordinating a 
city/campus recycling program. Most college students feel recycling isn't just a nice 
thing to do but a very urgent and important thing to do, but there's no way for us to 
do that in a city run by people who don't care about us. More coordination with the 
university would be a major step in the right direction. The citizens who aren't 
connected directly to the university need to remember that they still owe this city's 
existance to the university, and both groups should be proud of the work they could 
do together. With some help and encouragement from people in the CS 
government, TAMU and CS together could set an example for the whole country to 
follow! That's the kind of action I'd like to see happen in our community.

I visited a friend in Burlington, Vermont a few years ago and was amazed at how 
much material they recycle and also compost.  They have a bin that they put 
everything in, including hair, cardboard, compost, etc.  It gets composted in a 
special way.  They also recycled in the usual way, but with more materials.

My main comment is regarding the theft of Aluminum cans overnight from my 
driveway.  I am sure that Aluminum is the biggest revenue returning feature of this 
program for the city, and it is frustating to me to clean crush and bag the cans just 
for some individual to steal them and make a profit off of them.  Policing efforts 
should be implemented, to stop this otherwise it certainly discourages me from 
recycling aluminum cans, and I have thrown many away recently.

I would like to see recycling bins by trash dumpsters at apartment complexes.  this 
will encourage residence to recycle when taking out the trash.

generally, doing a great job.

Good JOb!!

it works and i believe it is going as well, if not better than most cities.  keep up the 
good work.

Please do not take my negative rating of the program wrong. i am so very, very 
happy that we have a program. i just want to see it expanded. We should be one of 
the leading communities in this state!!




as a whole i think we have a pretty good system and it educates kids to recycle to 
help save thew planet

I was very happy to see recycling when I moved back to College Station in 1993--I 
lived in WA state and the recycling was VERY BIG---I felt guilty throwing anything 
in the trash.

Glad you have it and will ALWAYS participate.

170



This is a good service that should be kept and, if possible, expanded 

I don't mind sorting but suspect more people would participate if they didn't have to 
sort.  In Los Angeles residents receive one big rolling bin (like our trash bins) that is 
dedicated to all types of recyclables.  I don't know the economics of this but it's 
worth looking into.

I think that if the program were easier to follow, more people would be inclined to 
recycle.  As it is now, it requires a lot of extra effort to recycle - it is easier to just 
throw stuff away!

I am very proud of our city and the recycling program and talk about it whnever I 
visit another city --- we are truly unique.

Please publicize the results of this survey

Overall, it's a very good program. 

Add a collection center in CS.

I think that better advertising of the City's recycling services would increase 
awareness of current services (which I was not completely aware of). Flyer in 
electrical bills and more on campus advertisment may be ways to accomplish this.

I have only started to use the program, i had never done it before because i had to 
use mulitple bags and have them get riped before the pick up date.

Thank you for the opporunity to be surveyed! Perhaps more surveys regarding 
other city services.....

I think the program is effective and targets the items that are easy for homeowners 
to separate and recycle.  For it to continue to be effective it must not become so 
cumbersome that the program would not be used.  White paper should not be 
included as part of the curbside program because of the cost, difficulty in 
separation and lack of impact.

KEEP UP THE GOOD WORK AND GOOD LUCK ON YOUR PRESENTATION TO 
COUNCIL ABOUT WHITE PAPER---SAMANTHA

This overall is an excellent program and every city should have one.

These surveys seem absolutely useless since these ideas never get implemented 
and the recycle department will never change their ways.  Something needs to 
happen and this town has the most potential of any town out there since the 
average age is quite young and younger people are typically open to newer ideas.

n/a

Overall, I'm not unhappy about the system, I'd just like to see it being used more 
and offer more options!

I am unsatisfied because I cannot recycle conveniently because I live in a condo. 
But if I lived in a house then I would definitely be satisfied with the current recycling 
program.

None

Pls add recycling center in College Station.  Evening and/or Saturday hours would 
be sufficient.

171



Doing great job

Thanks for asking

We moved here from a town that had MANDATORY recycling, and it irks me to 
watch my neighbors place two garbage cans for pick-up each week, while not even 
recycling their newspapers.  Greater surcharges for extra garbage pick-up might 
help.

we have enjoyed recycling since l994. the city of College Station has done an 
outstanding job addressing recycling.

Keep up the good work!!

I have recycled almost every week since the first day of the program.  My goal is to 
win the $250!

Recycling is important.  Please continue to offer and expand this service.

Continuing about students, it would be beneficial for all if in their "package" from the 
University there would be a welcome from the CS community government, police 
and neighborhood representatives, highlighting student responsibilities and well as 
benefits of living off campus.

All things considered it is a very good program

Its wonderful that this community is interested and proactive regarding recyling.  
You do a great job and service.  Thanks!!

thanks for asking.

we lived in fredericksburg, va (pop. about 25,000) and they let you use 1 box for 
everything and and at pick-up, men on truck would divide everything

It is a very important civic obligation to recyle.  I applaud all Cs city efforts to 
improve its recycling.

After living in Bryan I am thrilled at having any curbside service.  However, I do take 
LOTS of cardboard and grocery bags to Bryan. Also, it pains me to throw away 
materials that I see recyled when I visit other cities.

Please keep up the program.

I'm glad College Station did this several years ago.  It's a proactive stand.

I hope College Station with continue to use it's current recycling program.

I'll contact my stste legislators to urge deposits on all drink containers.

Thanks for asking for the public's input. I heard about this survey from a friend and 
on the Infomaniac program (M-F, 6-9 a.m., on WTAW), but I didn't see/hear 
anything about it from any other source. I may have just missed it, but spreading 
the word more might help.

increase the amt collected at curb!

172



Visit Houston and Austin and take note that you can put all your items in one bin 
without sorting.  Also, in Austin, apartment complexes have recycling containers.  
Oh, and in Houston and Dallas, the paper retriever recycling program has 
dumpsters at every school!  In those dumpsters, cardboard, newspaper, white 
paper, magazines, and phonebooks can all be recycled! Also, the Houston 
Chronicle sponsers a contest for schools...my elementary school in Rosenberg has 
won many years running.  That's a thought worth looking into.  The amount of 
waste I see in this town is horrifying.

Thanks for your efforts!

You are doing a wonderful job Dawn!!

Thank you for allowing me to express my opinions.

the attendants are always very friendly

I would add a recycling station in College Station (manned or unmanned).  Maybe 
even add various paper recycling "dumpsters" like in the Dallas area (company 
name is ABTBI?) - they are usually placed in school parking lots and are very 
convenient for newspaper magazine and other paper recycling.  It is pretty 
inconvenient for folks in south College Station to drive to the BRyan Walmart to 
reclycle.  

Please continue this terrific program!  I would be a very unhappy citizen if our 
recycling program were deleted.

I would appreciate a response to my questions at my email address:  
ppeddicord@aol.com which addresses my concerns.

Please keep re-cycling.

The program is great

Thanks for asking.  I hope we can improve this program by adding more variety of 
items recycled and creating a drop off facility in College Station.

i would really like to see more students get involved in recycling. in all the rental 
houses around me, i never see the students recycle. there are a lot of aluminum 
cans and bottles which could be recycled. you need to encourage them to help 
save our resources. neighborhood groups could help with printed material given out 
on a personal basis. 

I think every individual should participate in this wonderful program.

I have been to several other states where they recycle almost everything from 
envelopes to cereal boxes.

Places like Sugar Land actually have plastic recycling bins that are given to all of 
the residents. They are put out at the curb and picked up once a week. If all citizens 
were provided with a recycling bin instead of having to use bags I think it would 
increase the amount of recycling that occurs. I know I would definately start. 

173



I think College Station has an excellent waste management and recycling 
department.  I do not mind sorting the items- it is actually less messy than a bin.  
The College Station waste management department is "heads absove" the one that 
we had in Austin, TX. 

Continue it, expand it.  Also, continue to push the composting programs.

I have been recycling for yrs. We lived in Woodcreek for 16 yrs and recycled when 
the program began. we currently live in Wellborn, so I take my recycable to the 
Bryan location. I will continue to my part in keeping our enviroment in good shape 
for the next generation and taking care of what God has given us.

I am so glad you have a program here.

I imagine that most of your survey completion is being done by users of the 
recycling program.

1.  Have more and easy access battery site locations.  I have been in Best Buys 
that have battery bins in their entryways.  Does the city of College Station have a 
battery recycling program for it's employees that carry pagers?  Get corporations to 
buy into a program, but it has to be easy access.  St Joseph hospital does not have 
a recycling program for all the batteries it uses in all of its pagers, does the Med???  
The thought of the thousands of batteries that are going to the landfill just from 
these 2 facilities is depressing.

2. Promote in classrooms, put together easy presentations that substitute teachers 
could use if no other materials were available.  Make contact with the schools.

These materials could also be used by Girl/Boy clubs, scouts, science fairs, red 
cross health and safety days (the battery issue-when you check your smoke 
detector-where to recycle the batteries), service clubs, etc... 

3.  Pilot test a curbside collection where you use a separate recycling trash can like 
in Phoenix or Tempe, no sorting required by the consumer.  I don't think this would 
work in every neighborhood but maybe could get those that don't like to mess with 
or store the separate plastic bags for at least a week (more if you don't fill the bags 
per your request).

4. Does the ballparks and parks have recycling bins, at least for plastic bottles and 
cans?

I really like that CS has curbside recycling, with backup to take other items to Bryan 
(cardboard, bags, etc) on occasional trips.

appreciate the ability to recyle -Thanks

Not requiring separation should add considerably to the number of recycling 
residents. 



I participated in an A&M focus group on recycling last semester (I am 44 and not a 
student). Separation seemed to be the big tipping point of those who do and don't 
recycle. 



For those of us faithful to the program, separation usually means storing 
recyclables in our garage until there are "enough to fill the bag." Its a pain in the 
butt. It makes me think that we aren't serious about it.



That said, I am thankful for the program we have.

Best regards, Sam White 574-0626

174



Residents of apartment complexes and dorms need incentives to recycle until they 
value conservation.

Please work together with Texas A&M on spreading the word and doing more 
educational work among the general public about the importance of recycling

I would like to participate in the program. I am glad I visited the website. Thanks for 
having a recycling program.

Some how this should be required of all apartment complexes and/or offered as an 
option to apartment complex tenants.  Perhaps a separate garbage bin for 
recyclables.  The easier it is to recycle the more likely people will be to do it.  If I 
have to drive to some other location, other than where I drop of my garbage in my 
apartment complex, I am less likely to recycle.

Thanks for making recycling an option in C.S.!

Having lived in Austin for many years, I was very disappointed upon moving here 
regarding the recycling program (though very thankful there was one at all).  They 
have a model program, and it's shown in the statistics for the average Austin 
household - the amount of trash produced every year is far less than the national 
average.  Perhaps CS should look to their program for some guidance.

I think the with one bin college station will be people recycling...

Thanks for instituting this program.  I regret it has taken us so long to get on board.

Great Job

Thanks for the service and extending the life of the garbage dump.

I think we have a good program, but I think our community and planet deserve the 
best program we can design. With the expertise in this community (TAMU), we 
should be at the cutting edge of recycling and reuse. We should be a model 
community. Thank you for asking! 

We only recycle our cans which are usually picked up by unknown parties before 
the city picks them up - even if we leave them out that morning.

I wish we could convince the non-recyclers to get on board

I applaud the city for this program. It has worked great for years, provided relief for 
the landfill, and provided jobs in our community. This program shows that our city is 
progressive and environmentally responsible. 

Live at the Old Oak Tree Condos.  It would be nice to have a recycle pick up here, 
rather than me taking my papers to my friend's home for pickup.  Perhaps you 
could get more pickup places

by placing containers at more apartments, condo,

etc.  

....we moved to College Station nine months ago from a city of 65,000+ which had 
a once-a-year city sponsored recycling event..that was it..needless to say, we are 
very impressed with the recycling program here.  Congratulations for a job well 
done!  It would be wonderful to have recycling of plastic grocery bags added to your 
efforts...human nature being what it is and our propensity to take the easy way out, 
these long-lived monsters end up in our house trash instead of us taking them 
across town to a recycle bin...and curbside pickup would surely relieve my 
conscience! <g>  Thanks, again, for the super job you do!    

175



Let the program grow and expand.  Become a leader in Texas!

The employees who are responsible for curbside trash pickups are really good at 
their job.  Because they are good, they are fast and will often make an effort to see 
that residents who almost miss or miss curbside pickup are accomodated.  Of 
course, all the line employees I know are courteous and pleasant and appear to 
want to be a credit to the City.   Wish I could say the same for some of those higher 
up!  

Before moving here, our previous city (Pasadena, CA) had 2 recycling trash bins -1 
for yard debris and 1 for everything else (including: plastic #1-#6, paper, 
magazines, cardboard, and glass).  Printed on top of each can was the types of 
things accepted.  They made it very easy to recycle. 

I think CS needs a drive-thru drop off like Bryan

I am glad that College Station does some recycling but would like to see it 
expanded

Keep up the good work!

I fully support recylcing and am glad CS has a recycling program.

You could eliminate the cash for trash and do something else to market the 
program with the money.  You don't get much publicity, it only benefits a few, and 
$$ could be better used.  You could possibly work with a campus organization that 
encourages recycling (there is one I just don't know the name) and perhaps do a 
pilot program at an apartment complex.     Thanks for expanding the program as I 
just heard on tv and thanks for making it a curbside program.

Thanks for providing the supplies to make recycling easier for us!  Since the 
recycling program began, I now put out one 12 gallon bag of trash every 2-3 weeks 
and roll my bin out for trash pickup only as needed -- sometimes I don't even roll it 
out during a calendar month.

I do not know if College Station offers curbside pick-up to businesses and 
apartments, but I would imagine that these locations would greatly benefit - if not 
from curbside, but from large recycling bins placed near these places for the 
specific items to pick-up - glass, plastic, paper, etc.

keep up the good work and start collecting plastic bags. We throw most of ours 
away.

We live next to a rent house with four students.  They produce two containers of 
trash every week and do not recycle.  My wife and I, plus or four dogs produce one 
paper bag of trash and the rest is either composed or recycled. 

I am glad for the efforts the city makes in saving/recycling resources, but we can 
improve some in my opinion.  Thanks for doing what you do.

Hope to see this program as well as other conservatation programs grow and 
continue. Dawn Self is beautiful and is having a great hair day (KBTX). hah

Having magnets with this information might be one fast and easy way to get the 
program's name out to the public. Talk with apartment complex's and put them in 
the new apartments or give them to A&M to offer in bags at the book stores.

Do not have a truck to haul refrigerator to location on Rock Prairie.  Would pay to 
have it picked up.

176



That College Station recycles, and does curb side pickup.

curbside, weekly

pickup is run very well ..... never have had a problem with recycling not being 
picked up

Cubside pickup

NOTHING, it's terrible in College Station!

Steady pick-up, bags provided.

Having come from Austin, it is still much more easier to have recycling, even if you 
have to separate it yourself.

Curbside.  Bryan should invest in this.

Convenience of curbside pickup

What do you like best about the Recycling Programs?

More advertising needs to be done.  Many of my friends do not know they have 
curbside recycling.

keep the good job. Hopefully we can make college station one of the leading cities 
in recycling. Make more recycling stations available (not just at walmart in bryan for 
example, we have so many places we can have stations), more information for 
everyone to see. 

A valuable program and very well done. This keeps our landfills for garbage only.

I would liek to know more about College Station programs to recycle other items.



Robert Fliedner

1109 Santa Rita Court

College Station, TX 77845

It is a great program!

Exactly what plastics are ok?

N/A

not sure about how one recycles at a complex w/ a dumpster...should we leave 
bags out by dumpster??? and how do we get the bags?

Looks like you are starting to make an effort.  Texas needs to realize that out of 
sight does not mean out of mind when it comes to garbage and refuse.

Thanks for letting me know an dbeing informed

Keep it alive and well!!

Great about leaving new rolls of bags. Always on time for pick up. About the 
$250,people on the end of the route have it out,but it is not seen as being out by 8 
a.m. since our pick up is 2 to 3.

keep up the good work.

177



Curbside pickup

I just like that we have a recycling program.

That it is curbside and that I always get another set of bags everytime I put the 
yellow sticker on the last bag.

To be able to recycle

It's good for the planet.

Curbside pickup.

The enivronmental benefits

weekly pick-up

I appreciate the reliability of the Recycling Program pick-up service.  It is also great 
that there is a regular service for getting rid of hazardous things like paint, weed 
killer, etc.

Saving the planet

Being able to limit the amount of trash that we have.

Very consistant about pick-up. Good about leaving more bags.

takes newspapers, magazines, plastic, and glass; easy to put at end of driveway

Weekly pickup

Less to the landfiil.

Not as much trash to take out.

That they exist and that they come and pick it up curbside.

not being wasteful

Curbside pickup is a nice feature.  I called city council about recycling in 
apartments.  I understand that it has been abused in the past, yet strongly believe 
this abuse could be curtailed and then all residents could benefit from this service.

That you have it all.  I think it's great that you have curbside recycling.  

I am glad to live in a community that promotes recycling.

I love the curbside pickup

convenient

It's easy.  The fact that you supply the bags.

I like curbside pickup!  I like the free bags. 

With the curbside recycling, I like that you come pick it up, and I don't have to pack 
it in the car and drive it anywhere.  With the City of Bryan drop-off, I like that they 
take more kinds of things in one location.

Some things that can be reused get reused.

178



That you have one.

That there is actually a recycling program in the first place. having something is 
better than nothing.

bags are provided and curbside service

The opportunity to protect environment and reuse materials

Convenience & environmental aspects.

IT is easy and straightforward.

I like the weekly pickup schedule.

It's the best program I've used.

Provision of bags for recycling.

I like that the bags are delivered promptly.

Consistent pick up and replensihment of bags--I would not like it to be once a 
month, etc.  I would forget.

That it is available.

the fact that it exists

Free bags

Helps reduce need for landfill space as well as helps the environment.

I LIKE THAT THE RECYCLING IS COLLECTED CURBSIDE FROM MY HOME.

It's fine, but my apartment complex does not participate.

Convenience of curbside pickup of recycling and delivery of new recycling bags.

Bags are provided.  Prompt pick up and good customer service.

Curb side recycling is convenient

Curbside pickup.

it helps save our resources

curbside pickup; weekly schedule

They appear to serve the homeowners well.

Convenient

Convenience and consistence!  It's easy to drag the materials to the curbside.  The 
bags work well, too.  

that it exists

Curbside pickup.  The city provide the bags

I like that it is every week and that it is a curbside program

that we have one at all

179



Convienence

That fact that the City has a recycling program and that the City delivers the recycle 
bags to my home. 

The coordinator and staff

The Curbside Serive; it's very convenient.

Ease of use

That we have one at all.

curb side pick up

na

Not sure....dont know a lot about it.  Although I do try and recycle all my aluminum 
soda cans.

That College Station actually has a recycling program.

I like that they pick up the recycling.

Free plastic bags to use!  I think it's a good environmental thing to do.

Fairly easy

while i don't personally do it, i do see others doing and when the trucks are out 
picking up the materials, they usually are very full.

Reducing waste in landfill

convenient curb pick up

easy curbside service

Being able to reduce trash volume, and to know that something useful is being 
made of the recycled items

Curbside sevice and the fact that the bags are provided.

convenience - city provides bags

ONCE A WEEK COLLECTION

Recycling releaves dump sites, environmently.  Create products from recycled 
products at lower cost

Being able to recycle without having to drive all over creation.

It's less going to the landfill

WEEKLY PICKUPS AND FREE BAGS

Curbside pickup

There is one for those who wish to use it.

The convience and efficiency

180



It allows me to get rid of stuff that's recyclable, which cuts down on the quantity of 
those items that go to the landfill; it's convenient; I don't have to drive to recycle; CS 
provides the recycling bags.

These items are picked up at the curb, this makes recycling must easier and I like 
the plastice bags are furnished.

I like that you simply recycle. I like that it is once a week instead of every other 
week as it is in my former home of Minneapolis.

That they exist at all.

The dependable weekly regularity; the products they currently take.

The people at the office are very courteous.  It's easy to obtain supplies of recycling 
bags when needed.  



Also, I appreciate the recycling program for hazaroud waste & computer parts. 

curbside pickup

easy to put things out at curb

consistancy, door to door pick-up,the fact that it helps keep our dump site 
mamageable.

Convenient drop of of bags and supplies, courteous employees on pick-up route

Curbside recycling is ideal.  I applaud the city for this service

Weekly curbside pickup; takes bulk of our recyclables; reliable and easy to use.

I think it is great that we have curbside recycling!

Not having to separate glossy inserts when recycling newspaper and accepting 
magazines.

That it recycles!

I am a senior citizen and curbside recycling makes it possible for me to participate.  
Let's keep it the way it is.

convenience

curbside pickup

feeling we are contributing to a better environment and helping things to be used 
agagin.


Helps the enviroment

The fact that it is curbside and convenient ensures that I use it every week.

convenient

Curbside recycling.

they pick up from the house

The environmental savings.

181



it's curbside, easy

I like the whole program C.S. has.

Prompt service when you ask for bags

The fact that people do not need to put plastics, glass, newspapers, etc., into our 
landfill.

The best aspect is that items are picked up from our home.

I am a firm believer in recycling and am grateful for the curbside collection, bag 
replacement, and timely collection service.

Curbside collection is convenient and easy.

Keeps it out of the land fill.

Curbside pickup.  Phamplets left with bundles of bags indicating what and how to 
recycle.  Ease of ordering replacement bags.  Dependability of service.  Curbside 
pickup.

For a city our size, our program is amazing.  We are able to recycle so many 
different types items.

The fact that they come by and pick it up--I am happy that College Station has a 
program to keep some of the things that don't break down, out of the environment.

Saves filling the land fill

better than nothing!

They pick up recycling bags at the curb in front of our house.

Curbside service

I like to think I am helping keep the environment clean. It's very easy to do; 
recycling can be done on a daily basis and picked up curbside weekly.

It is picked up regularly at my home. I do not have to take it to a remote location.

Very efficient, comes every week.  They quickly give us a new set of bags when we 
ask.

Bags supplied

I like that fact that the city has a recycling program and that it helps reduce the 
amuont of trash taht goes into our landfill.

Ease

I enjoy being able to recycle.

I like the Recycling Program.  I am diligent in preparing my stuff for recycle and do 
not want anything changed, just improved.  

It is well managed and very convenient for the home owner.  Keep up the good 
work!!

the recycling bags are furnished, and the recycling is picked up curbside on a 
weekly basis. Good job.

182



the curbside pick-up

The program exsists. That is a start.

Saves the city money, I hope.

Convenient. Curbside location. Should provide example for others in neighborhood 
to recycle if they choose to notice their surroundings.

curbside

I love that we can recycle plastic, cans, and some paper.  We recycle all that we 
can.

Keeping the enviroment cleaner

It is very easy and convenient

There *is* curbside pickup, rather than requiring residents to go to a drive thru

Curbside recycling is easy, convenient and the plastic bags make it neat- nothing 
blowing away or falling.  I sometimes use the Bryan facility when a holiday falls on 
my recycling days.

Convenient to use.  

That we have one for paper and phone books

Just that it recycles

Our family is glad that curbside recycling is available.

That you have one.

Ease of leaving it on the curb to be picked up and the bags being given to us.

They pick up weekly and do pick up newsprint, plastic, and glass.

I can leave the items next to my driveway

I like that my city cares about the environment. 

the fact that it is easy and convenient to use. i probably wouldn't be as inclined to 
participate if i have to carry it to a center.






that you have curbside recycling

I live in an apartment.  I think the program stinks.  

Possibilty of winning money!

What I like best is those programs help to educate residents about preserving 
natural resources by recycling commonly used materials

For those items the program takes it's pretty convenient.

Saving space in my regular trash and saving on landfill space.

183



that they pick it up.  I think more people recycle when you make it that convenient,

I feel that by recycling, I am helping preserve the environment in some small way.

Curbside!!

That it exists!

Weekly pick up is very convenient

That exists in some form. Many communities do not offer recycling at all. Curb-side 
pickup is definitely great.

Convenience of having curbside pick-up 

Conservation of natural resources.

The fact that the City is doing something about recycling, and making it convenient 
with the provision of bags and curbside pick-up.

Help environment, reduce waste in land fill. Easy to use.

Keeps the environment clean!

I like it that College Station is very active in recycling and tries to incorporate it into 
daily lives of people

Quick and great service

I had no clue that CS even had a recycling program until I updated a listing of 
websites we provide to our incoming students!  Why doesn't my apartment complex 
offer this service?  How do I recycle if they don't offer this program for some 
reason?

environmentally responsible action by citizens and city

curbside is great!!!

curbside pickup

curbside pickup

that it's curbside; that bags are provided

weekly curbside pickup

It makes me feel better about my family's use of plastics, etc. It is reliable.

The convience of curbside pick up as I do not have a car.

Weekly Pickup

we are preserving space in the landfill and reusing materials. I love the courteous 
people who man the recycling truck. I like the fact that we are a progressive 
community and care about leaving a better world for our children.

That you are putting thought and energy into it.

helps the environment

184



Curbside pick-up and weekly pick-up

Feel we can all do our part to lower landfill waste

Pick up is always done and bags are furnished and refills are available in an 
organized way.

That we can get rid of things while helping our community.

That CS has one!

I like the fact that we can combine newspapers and magazines!

It is very convenient to have curbside pick-up.  I applaud the city for the outstanding 
job it does with recycling!

THE WEEKLY COLLECTION AND BAGS PROVIDED

It cuts down on the amount of trash.

N/A

Keeps stuff out of the Landfill.

I feel like I'm helping with the environment and it's easy to do with city supplying the 
bags and coming once a week to pick up the recycle items.

Weekly service schedule. Bags provided. 

that it's picked up at my house, and every week

I don't know one thing I like best.

N/A

easy to use

curbside pickup

Curbside Pickup

free bags, consistent pickup

I believe in recycling.



What I like best is that they pick up

curbside pick up

curbside service

Easy to participate

Curbside pickup!

Regularity of pickup, and the fact that the City is concerned about filling landfills 
with goods that would enhance further land use.  

I like the convenience and regularity of the program. Appreciate the bags being 
provided.

185



Just having the bags.  It would be much easier if they were recycling containers.  
Also, more than once I've put recycling on the curb and the cans get taken by 
someone before the recycling truck ever comes.

No apartment recycling, no colored plastic recycling, no plastic bag recycling, one 
has to sort everything vs. in my hometown where recyclables all go in the same bin
--and there is a bin.  No drive through recycling place for college station!!!

I kept putting out recycling for Thursday morning and it was never picked up.

does not take cardboard (heavy & light [eg, cereal boxes])

Would like to put all items in to bins - like Austin has - ALSO - get actual bins rather 
than the bags.  

TCW.  Never pick up at the same time.  Hard to get a routine going if you miss 
them.

availability in apartment complexes

That apartments are not covered.

That we cannot recycle green glass.  Green glass is the "hip" thing with newer 
wines and import beers.  I have to throw away all of this glass that we generate.

I wish I was able to recycle more commodities in one collection bin.

Must dedicate 3 seperate large trash cans for dark glass, clear glass, and cans-- 
even though the clear glass and cans take months to fill up.

Storing my recyclables until the bag is full.  Sometimes it may take several weeks 
until my bag of newspapers is full enough to put on the curb.  In the meantime, I 
have to find a place to store it.

The incompetent people.  This ranges all the way up to the sanitation managers.

Having to separate the glass but understand the savings.

will not take cardboard

have to separate everything

Would like to see a couple more types of recycling added

Having to maintain mulitple containers to sort recyclables.

I wish it included more items like cardboard, colored glass, and colored plastic.

What do you like least about the Recycling Programs?

saves landfill space

Less trash

curb pick up and the stability of the program---good service

Clean p the environment.

That we have one.

The convenience of curbside pickup

186



No green glass

The bag program is a bit cumbersome. To make it easier for myself, I've bought 
medium-sized trash cans and place the recycling bags in them to collect glass and 
aluminum cans. Unfortunately, due to the size of the bags, no recepticle is of 
matching size. So, I either don't fill the bags completely or have to remove the bag 
from the container to continue filling it. It would be nice if we had the plastic bins 
that other cities have.

The requirement to separate types of glass, etc.

That it doesn't take solid colored containers.  At least I thought it didn't till I saw it on 
the page just a bit ago.  Guess it changed.  Also don't like that they come by right at 
8:00.  I don't like putting it out the night before, and I don't have time to get outside 
that early when dealing with 2 kids under the age of 4.

Not being able to recycle more

The fact that it will not take opaque plastic, or plastics other than 1 and 2.  There is 
currently no way to get rid of, say, a yogurt container.

The fact that curbside recycling doesn't accept cardboard and plastic grocery bags.

Having to put a "free for Haul" sign on things that could still be used, but do not fit 
the recycling criteria.  If some one wants an old dry erase board that is damaged 
and I put out on the curb, let them have it.  College station is far too over 
ordinanced in many ways.

No green glass allowed

Need to add colored glass, plastic, wine bottles, and more materials.



maybe with the new landfill a central recycling facility could be built for the Brazos 
Valley to accept recyclable material.   It could even be used to make money by 
selling the material to industries that need them.

That you have to use bags to place items into and not bins, that you have to fill 
those bags before setting them out.  It's just 2 of us in our tiny house and we don't 
often use alot of one thing before the space to store the recyclables fills up.  That's 
why I mainly use the Bryan facility as I can go when my storage space is full.  I 
would prefer curbside (less gas) if we could use bins for different items or place all 
of the items into one container.  Also, the very limited numbers of items recycled is 
problematic (with Bryan, too).  Waco seems to have started a great program that 
takes nearly everything - and they say is saving them money to boot.

not everything I recycle can be put curbside

Would like to recycle plastic grocery bags.

The clutter in the garage and having to go to A & M to recycle paper and Bryan to 
recycle cardboard and many other places......

You often don't pick-up near holidays

Mainly, the lack of recycling of cardboard boxes and green glass.  

I wish you took cardboard and green glass

187



i used to live in san diego.  in california, it's been found the best system is to allow 
people to put nearly everything in one hard container and then pay a few people to 
sort it out at a sorting center.  it's the confusion about how to sort things that keeps 
people from recycling.



clear plastic bags suck.  give us hard containers.

I wish that there were more types of items that I could recycle (e.g., green glass, 
colored plastic bottles, cardboard, office paper and plastic bags).  I also like the X-
mas tree recycling program where you get a seedling in exchange for the old tree.  
I wish there were more seedling give aways :)

that it is not mandatory for residents

Doesn't include plastic grocery bags.

Not familiar enough to answer.

When bags we run out of bags it's a hassle.  The fact that green glass is not 
recycled (at least as far as I know).

Having to clean containers to avoid attracting bugs, etc.

It is not available to people who use dumpsters for their trash. A community bin for 
a complex would be great to start recycling in multifamily housing.

Separating items into different bags.

Having all the recylables around the house.

They dont come to our neighborhood Timbercrest

That plastic shopping bags are not one of the items on the list.  That you can't 
recycle solid colored plastic bottles like washing detergent.

can't recycle paper and its difficult to separate all the different types.  One bin would 
be much more convenient and easier. 

If I loose the yellow sticker, it is hard to get more recycling bags.

Many items cannot be recycled (green glass, certain plastics etc)

It would be nice not to have to sort everything and I wish the city would accept 
more items (plastic besides #1 and #2) and more paper items.

The lack of recyling for junk mail and so on.

I LEAST LIKE THE MISSED DAYS SUCH AS HOLIDAYS WHICH ARE NOT 
RESCHEDULED.

having to seperate and put recycling in plastic bags. Doesn't that just create more 
waste?

Cardboard and junk mail not accepted

Items must be bagged separately

the lesser known programs are harder to find out about

188



no plastic grocery bags

no bins

not enough recyclable accepted

Need to recycle boxes, cardboard ect.

n/a

limited product pick-up

do not take cardboard or plastics, like shampoo bottles, butter tubs, etc.

nothing

SOMETIMES THEY WON'T PICK UP THE GLASS IF NOT SORTED BY COLOR

Would like to recycle other plastics and green glass, also on several occasions 
aluminum placed on curb overnight is stolen by morning in Castlegate.

More convenient and frequent way to dispose of hazardous materials.


doesn't go far enough

I would really like to see CS recycle #7 plastics (as well as others) and cardboard, 
especially cereal box-type cardboard.  It would be great to reduce the amount of 
packaging that goes in the trash.  Of course, it would be better to not have so much 
packaging in the first place!

They do not help college students at all, and we are the ones who are the most 
environmentally aware and actually care about the future enough to want to 
recycle.

That noone knows about them.

All the different bags for each separate item laying around my garage.  There is no 
online form to fill out to get more bags.

recycling doesnt always get picked up and bags arent always delivered when 
requested

That it is not available to me.

I would like to see more days that hazardous items can be turned in.  Bryan is 
inconvenient and the line is too long---AND  I HATE SuperWalmart and Briarcrest 
Dr.

Could recycle bins for other items be set up in College Station?

the program only recycles a limited number of items.. so i have to go to Bryan and 
take things into the office.

not having bins; aluminum cans being stolen

I would like more automotive waste to be picked up curbside (oil filters/used motor 
oil) or that oil filters could be dropped off behind the police department as well.  

No acceptance of green glass or blue glass, no acceptance of colored plastics.  

Also somewhat dislike sorting own recyleables, instead of tossing all into a single 
bin.

189



I don't like having to separate items.  I also don't like the plastic bags.

lack of recycling center like the one in bryan for drop-off of recyclable materials for 
residents without curbside recycling

There is no way to recycle in CS if I live in an apartment.  I have to drive to Bryan 
(which I do) in order to recycle.

Storing and sorting the recyclables while trying to get enough to justify filling a bag!

Having to drive to Bryan to recycle.

How it is incredible limited and will never expand beyond where it is now.  It will 
always be the same and new ideas are looked at as too difficult to do and not worth 
it.

That I dont know a lot about it....but that is mostly my fault.  If I needed to know 
something, I can either call the city or look it up online.

Limited number of items to recycle; 

No issues

Having to stack up at the stuff till it's picked up

SORTING THE RECYCLEABLES. 

Nothing

have to separate colored glass. often not enough of a particular color (other than 
clear) to make it worthwhile to separate. 

My street is often missed and when I place out the yellow sticker for bags, I still 
have to call to have some broght out 

The inconvience of having to sort the items as home.

Can't recycle colored glass.  

That not all my plastic can be done, and my boxes aren't allowed either.

It is difficult to sort and store diferent bags all week long.

The plastic recycle bags are too small,especially for newspapers! Prior to living in 
CS, lived in the City of Copperas Cove who provided a plastic tub for newspaper 
and recycle cardboard materials in one consolidated container. 

I wish there was a recycling center in College Station. Or that condos had a system 
similar to Curbside Recycling Program.

Not available in all parts of the city.

Compaired to many other cities College Station has very little in the way of 
recycling services. Additionally, College Station does not take a very wide range of 
materials such as green glass. 

Would like to see it expanded

Not enough public awarness about the recycling program.

190



The fact that all eligible plastic items are not recyclable here.

not everything is recycled.  if one wrong thing is in the bag, the entire bag is not 
picked up

I have no problems with any of the recycling program,.

The program doesn't cover enough neighborhoods; the program doesn't take green 
plastic and glass bottles, cardboard, or plastic bags.

nothing

I do not like having to get bags from the City. It seems sort of wasteful and it is a 
little inconvenient. I'd like to use brown paper grocery bags with a recycling bin. I do 
not like that cardboard, corrugated boxes, and office paper are not recycled. 
However, I will admit that I am spoiled from living in such a progressive city as 
Minneapolis.

Too restrictive, too specific on what goes where.  I would indeed much prefer single
-bin collection, rather than separate bags, although I know it costs more.  Also, I 
cringe when I see aluminum cans by the hundreds go into trash bins at businesses 
and schools.  

My recycling hardly ever gets picked up when it is supposed to.

1.  Workers cut open bags to remove items not currently accepted, and toss 
unwanted items on the lawn

2.  List of accepted items changes capriciously

3.  Truck doesn't always come

Do not take green glass.  Having the separate bags for different colored glass, not 
taking cardboard or plastic bags.

Not enough plastics are accepted.

No green glass.

No cardboard.

No whitepaper.

Items have to be sorted.  I knkow that some people do not recycle because of this.  
Some other cities allow residents to place materials in one bin

Won't accept green glass; acceptable glass colors are ambiguous (shades of green 
to yellow); won't accept cardboard or wider variety of plastics.

Having to continually call for additional bags as the yellow notice I put on the bag is 
generally ignored.

I would like to see cardboard and plastic grocery sacks added.

Limitations on what items are included, particularly plastics and glass.

I would like to add green glass, colored and opaque milk, juice and tea containers.

don't have complaints

1.  too many different sacks

2.  having to crush things


Do not like to separate items because I never have enough to fill bags

191



No cardboard and paper for curbside recycle, and I have too many plastic bags 
with recycle items in my garage. We are only two in our household so it takes 
awhile to fill them up.


I would prefer that the recycling program include other substances, especially 
cardboard and plastic bags.  I have tried to take them into the A&M recycling area 
but that is very inconvenient.  They do not take plastic so I bring that into the 
grocery stores but the space is limited and also not convenient for large amounts.  
The other recommendation I would have is to find a way to provide for recycling 
during holiday times or for holidays.  

I stopped using the recycling program in College Station because my recycling 
bags were never picked up.  I would set my bags on the curb the night before or 
early morning on the day it was scheduled to be picked up.  On numerous 
occasions, the bags were never picked up.  I stopped using the program because 
of this issue.

I wonder why we are not able to recycle green glass and cardboard.  In other 
municipalities both are accepted.  Why not here? What a waste!

I wish the program would recycle colored wine bottles and plastic bags.

I can't think of any thing that isn't to like

Limitations on what is taken

I hate having to use new plastic bags for each material - makes no sense to use 
one product to recycle another.

Would like to see recycling for plastic bags, different colors of containers (plastic 
and glass, brown, blue or green)but have these put into one container.  It's asking 
too much for every item to be separated, but think we should do our part in 
recycling.

Unable to pick up a greater variety of recyclables causing me to depend on the 
Bryan drive-thru facility or throw away what I know can be recyled.

When we run out of bags, getting new ones has been somewhat difficult. I don't 
know if the drivers don't see our large note  stappled to the outside of a bag or the 
yellow sticker/label  indicating we need more bags. But is seems like we have had 
to make a phone(s) requesting more bags, which can take time.

Limited types of materials picked up for recycling.

Wish there were more sites to drop off materials.

I think the city could do more to recycle additional items.  

?

n/a

They don't even bother to recycle at the apartment complexes, which means that 
the largest source of trash and recyclables is all going into a landfill, not being 
recycled.

It is gret!!!

Nothing

192



That not enough people participate. Trash bins are full of recyclables and no one 
cares. 

nothing.

1 & 2 colored plastic, cardboard and green glass not acceptable, the green waste--
branches and lawn clippings are put in regular truck even though put out on 
Fridays.

the fact that more items aren't included such as cardboard, more plastics, and 
miscellaneous paper as catalogs.

Don't take cardboard

High cost

When you consider the volume of trash, the variety of things we can recycle at the 
curb is pretty small.

I wish we could recycle more kinds of paper.

I dislike the way the recycling program is distributed along the city. Only houses are 
included in the recycling program. Apartments / apartment complexes are not 
concerned by the curbside recycling program. and I think they do not represent a 
small part of the production of  garbage.

putting things in bags

Doesn't take enough.  Would sort green glass and would like to see white paper 
collected.  We shread and take it to the university.

Recycle item list not broad enough.  Need to add more items to the list.

Nothing

The majority of my trash consists of junk mail and advertisements.  It would be 
great if mixed paper could be added to the program.

That not everyone is taking advantage of such a convenient system.

i don't know how it's determined who wins the $250 each month

Wish more things could be recycled.

We would like to see more items available for recycling in the curbside program.

Know of nothing

Unable to recycle #3 plastics or colored plastic containers. 

Wish it included items such as cardboard, white paper, etc.

Not at apartments or easy location in town to drop off.

They don't pick up magazines, computer paper, and other paper products.  

that we can't recycle solid white milk bottles.

Also, my mom lives in an apt. complex here and there is no facility for her to use to 
recycle. She has to bring her papers and bottles to me to recycle them.

193



I'd like to see more students participating.

I would like to see cardboard recycled (that is what I take to the Bryan facility)

I know nothing about them.  Y'all need to get the word out.  I'm so excited about 
recycling and only have not been because I thought you had no program at all.  

don't take cardboard, white paper, green glass

People who come by on recycle days and run off with the aluminum cans

Need to recycle more items such as green and blue glass- all plastics and plastic 
bags and cardboard.


-having to hassle w/ different bags for everything, especially separating glass colors

-lack of programs for residents in apartment complexes

-the many items that are *not* allowed by the program

Separating content is a bit of a pain, but not too bad. Don't accept many recyclables 
(plastic types, colors, etc). Corrugated cardboard is very prevalent, but getting it 
knowcked down and compressed could be an issue and it would blow around 
neighborhood.

such a limited # of items can be picked up/difficulty of getting more bags to 
use/useless yellow sticker that never sticks



The pick-ups come late in the day and sometimes do not come on regular day.

No green glass. Use of plastic bags. Separation.

No very accessable.

Had no idea they existed.  More marketing is needed on this valuable program!

I forget to ask for bags

Curbside recycling is not available in many apartment complexes, as well as for 
many businesses

the separating items into different bags, make a hassle to get it to the curbside..

nothing, really

doesn't take cardboard, colored bottles, plastic grocery bags

194



That the materials that can be recycled here are so limited.

I repeatedly put the yellow stickers on my bags indicating that I need more bags. To 
date, it has NEVER worked. I have to call each time to get more bags (and my 
family uses a LOT of bags)!

My recycables are not always picked up. Ilive in a high student population area and 
I am probably the only one on the block to recycle,usually only once a month. 
therefore it is probably not economical for the truck to check my area.

















































































m

Not enough items are recyclable such as a variety of colored glass bottles other 
than just brown and clear. 

I do not always get new bags even when I put the yellow sticker on as a signal.

195



That we can no longer put out plastic shoping bags for dispersal and disposal.  I 
have found that Albertson's however, will take these bags.  I would also like to be 
reassured that these products; the plastic, etc are not dumped in the ocean. 

skip Mondays that are holidays - should pick up Tuesday or Wednesday

Don't recycle enough products.

No problems.

We left our recycling out on the curb on the assigned day for our address.  The stuff 
was still there a week and a half later before it finally got picked up.

No green glass pickup, 

That it doesn't accept more types of recylables

It's very difficult to deal with multiple bags every week.  I dislike throwing away 
many types of plastic because they can't be recycled here.

That it does not take more recyclables

Not all plastics are accepted (I understand as of this morning's Channel 3 spot that 
all #1 and #2 plastics are now accepted -- would love to see all plastics included).  
Green glass is no longer accepted (I understand there is no market for it).  No 
cardboard recycling.

Can't think of anything

the unreliability.  Several times they have not come on the day and you have had to 
pick it up.  They did not come yesterday and I will be calling again today.

Not enough stuff can be recycled such as:

1.  Green glass bottles

2.  Plastic shopping bags (though they can at Wal-Mart)

3.  Solid plastic containers

nada

Lack of knowledge

you do not take cardboard (I see a LOT of cardboard put out at the curb going to 
the dump!) -and- using plastic bags

Need more education and information on recycling systems. Like how to setup the 
containers and such in the garage. Like identify a color code system and make 
available for purchase containers that are color coded to make it easier and more 
involving for the family to recycle. 

Have trouble getting recycle bags from time to time.

Would pay to have refrigerators picked up and freon removed.

Would like to include more items in curbside recycling.

not enough items collected and recycled

Perhaps its my own fault, but I was not aware of curbside pickup.  I am sure many 
other students are not either which is a huge problem considering so many 
students live here. Awareness. That is what I like least about the program.

196



Make it single stream like Houston.

Like in Austin-- one large plastic bin where ALL recyclables are tossed into one 
container to be sorted by workers.

Add green glass 

Better publicity to improve participation, especially on TV and radio

Please add the option for green glass, ie. wine bottles.

That it would be picked up.

Add more recycling options

What would you change about the Curbside Recycling Program?

I always seem to be out of bags.

While realizing the difficulties at your end-- not having to separate items would be 
great!!

Not happening in the apartment I am in.

I really wish you would collect plactic numbers 1 through 5 or 7 and paper such as 
cereal boxes;

would like better info on changes of what is ok to recycle.  Didn't know about 
colored plastic (laundry bottles)  Wouldlike to recycle plastic fruit containers (like 
strawberry)

No cardboard or paperboard recycling and no apartment complex recycling 
programs

Nothing really.

It sometimes comes too early in the day

can't put out cardboard including cardoard cereal boxes etc

I would like to be able to recycle more items such as paperboard which makes up a 
large percentage of household waste.

Don't take paperboard or cardboard or colored glass.

Nothing

Having to use the recycling bags.  They are difficult to use for newspapers

cardboard?

cans are frequenly stolen before collection

nothing

N/A

Having to separate everything.

n/a

197



recycle more stuff

Would like to recycle plastic grocery bags.

Pick up around holidays too.  More education on other things that can be recycled.  
Maybe a refrigerator magnet with a list.

See #15.

I would eliminate it. It is too costly. Far too many citizens do not participate. By 
having a central location to drop off recyclables, the added inconvenience would be 
offset by cost savings.

I wish you took cardboard and green glass

curbside pick up at apartments and drop off location in college station

Add cardboard.

Containers instead of just bags.

Give residents recycling bins vs. wasting more plastic, and create an incentive 
program--charge more for regular trash disposal services and less for recycling 
services!!!

Add Green bottles, almost all the wine I drink comes in green bottles. Add plastic 
grocery bags.

give us a bin instead of plastic bags, take cardboard

Quit using the bags and get the plastic boxes like other cities

Start accepting paper and plastic bags.

Make it mandatory for apartment complexes.  They're making money hand over fist, 
force them to do it for the betterment of the public welfare.

Create recycling program for condos and apartments.

White and mixed paper recycling would be a real blessing.  Ceral box cardboard is 
also something that needs to be recycled. 

Use bins and not plastic bags (more enviro friendly) and have recycle pick up on 
the same day as trash pickup - easier to remember.  Accept all of the plastics, not 
just clear bottles of #1 and 2, but other items, too.  



Also, where are you guys on campus when the college students are arriving?  My 
student worker didn't even know about the curbside and wouldn't have recycled at 
all had I not educated her.  A small info booth at the MSC at the beginning of each 
semester to hand out the bags or info on what is accepted would do a lot of good!

Not having to sort would make recycling even more convenient and make me more 
likely to recycle again.

add cardboard; encourage more people to use

Allowing green glass

Bigger bags or move to bins.  The little bags provided do not hold much when 
dealing with the plastic milk jugs and soda bottles.

198



If the answer to question 15 could be resolved, that would be it.

When you place the yellow sticker they actually will drop off bags.  I have probably 
gone thru 10-15 bundles of bags and have only had them left once.  I always have 
to call.

I have seen other citites that will give a container  just for recycling goods, and all 
recyclables go into this one container.  much easier than trying to find room in my 
duplex for 8 different bags of recyclables.

Instead of separate bags for each item, it would be nice to have one or even a few 
open plastic boxes/bins (like in other cities).  It is difficult to justify using a separate 
bag for the small amount of each type of recylables we collect each week.

I WOULD ALLOW THE CITIZENS TO PLACE ALL THE GARBAGE OUT TO BE 
COLLECTED AND THEN SORT THE RECYCLING AT A CITY FACILITY.  THAT 
WAY EVERYONE WOULD PARTICIPATE AND ALL ITEMS THAT COULD BE 
USED WOULD BE RECYCLED.

-recycle a larger variety of materials.

-recycling bins (similar to many other cities) instead of plastic bags

Putting all recycling in one bin rather than separated.  I dont have a lot of extra 
space to have garbage cans for each type of item. 

I notice that rather a lot of trucks come through--picking up different things such as 
brush, or newspapers, or bulky trash items.  Wouldn't it be more efficient and less 
noisy for the neighborhoods to go through just once and pick everything up at one 
time?

Expand to Bryan and currently unserved College Station neighborhoods. 

In relationship to the bags/bins discussion, perhaps to decrease expense, a 
consumer could "earn" the right to get collection bins after participating in the 
recycling program for XX months (or something similar). I would also like to see the 
ability to recycle colored glass (wine bottles).

Less separation required.

Add items to recycle, if it's beneficial.

I would add other itens to be recycled

Include those items in the program

Accept cardboard and junk mail.

Accept all glass, plastic containers, mixed paper in one plastic container.

I would like to be able to put all the recylables into one container

extend to include nearby divisions

Offer it to townhouses, apartments, duplexs, etc.

Allow all recycle items to be put into one bag.

199



Add green glass and other colored glass. Add cardboard curbside recycling.

1) expand the items that can be recycled to include green glass, all plastics (1,2,3) 
at least and with all colors, mixed packaging paper, Battries (at least once a month 
or some such period).



2) also hate worrying if i get extra bags. sometimes the pick-up service misses that 
i have put the yellow labels on the bag and hence i am without.



3) sometimes have people come by and take the cans before the recycling truck 
gets there. there should be a city ordinance that makes this punishable.



4) need to do more to educate children in the college station schools about the 
program so they get their families involved.




add the above items at least on a monthly basis if not weekly.

Would like to be able to place all recyclables in the same bin. 

They need to expand this program to make it more convenient for people living in 
apartments. If anything that should be easier than the curbside program because 
the residents are already used to hauling trash to a dumpster. If there was a way to 
add recycling to apartments there would be a lot more participation.

I would definitely work with apartment managers to set up a recycling program. I 
have been very disappointed that this is not available. I have to collect my things (in 
an apartment there is little room for this!!) and take them all the way over to Bryan 
to recycle. I came from a city and state where recycling was very easy and 
inexpensive and I definitely would like this improved in College Station.

Nothing except that mentioned above

more publicity about how it saves energy and pollution.  show high profile people 
recycling.  get rid of the clear bags and give us hard containers.

Make it more widely known.  Expand the list of items that can be recycled.

Nothing except expand to include certain hazardous materials such as batteries.  I 
would guess that most people dispose of their batteries in the trash.  A convenient 
way to get rid of these would be an excellent step forward, even if they are not 
recycled, they would be taken out of landfills and incinerators.

add appliances/electronics, batteries, other plastics.... etc.

Nothing

One or two dedicated cans that can be rolled out to the curb.  I would prefer smaller 
than the current trash cans so they could fit in the garage.  My aunt in California 
has a trash can, a recycle can (all recyclables), and a brown can (grass clippings 
etc.) which works well.

Allow more materials to be recycled.  

Possible have recycle bins to avoid waste associated with plastic bags, and allow 
other plastics and green glass.

200



Nothing

I would like to see the city provide a receptical that all items would be placed and 
sorted at the recycler.

add plastic grocery bags

provide bins

Have it available to apartment communities.

I have no opinion

COMMINGLING INTO ONE CONTAINER

Nothing

Bins vs. Bags

I would like maybe to see bins or a place you could drop stuff off

Expand area of use

Our family just moved from the city of Monona, WI, just outside Madison, Wisconsin 
(the first city in the nation to have city-wide curbside recycling)  We had an 
excellent recycling that was easy for everyone to participate in and accepted a wide 
range of materials.  A link to the Monona recycling program is: 
http://www.monona.wi.us/departments/Public_Works/pages/refuse_recycling.html



Though I am a committed recycler, and will continue to recycle, when I read the CS 
recycling guide I was amaxed at the amount of detail that homeowners must follow.  
For those citizens that are not committed to recycling, I can see that this would very 
quickly lead to non-participation.  In our previous community, the bin was supplied 
(similar in style and pick-up to the CS trash bins, and ALL recyclables including 
paper products went in one bin.



We were disappointed to see that the range of items that CS accepts at the 
curbside is very limited (limited plastics, no green bottles, no mixed paper or 
cardboard) and that each type of recyclable must be separated.  



We will participate in the recycling program and will look for recycle our items that 
are not accepted at the curbside.  



I'm glad that you are doing this survey and I'll remain involved in the program.

Add white paper and make program available to multi-family housing

It seems to work fine --I would just like to see more of my neighbors utilize the 
program.

expand the products recycled to include various plastics, white and other papers, 
and cardboard

more visibility in some way to promote more involvement from the citizenry.  this 
may very well take more financial support from the council

Same bin for all recyclables, more products allowed curbside

I wish we could recycle cardboard and paperboard boxes, which we always seem 
to have a lot of.

201



It would be much easier to recycle if there weren't so many rules (wash, remove 
lids, seperate, set out, use a sticker etc.), if we could put everything in one bin (the 
bags are too small!) and if the pickup dates were the same as our garbage dates.

Take more types of recyclables.  

I want to be able to recycle more items -- colored plastic, cardboard, green bottles, 
etc.

Nothing

Allow mixing of recylabe items and add plastic bags

Address the issues in #15.

How about coming up with a way to accept leaves in the fall for composting?

use containers not bags, add junk mail to list.  Alot more people would use it, if you 
could recycle junk mail and plastic bags, give containers so people don't have 4 
different bags collecting for a week at a time.

Make it available to all residents in the city.

n/a

Plastic tubs

Pickup bins so it is very obvious that the service exists. I would also like to see the 
types of materials accepted expanded. 

Add a few things

na

Just to clear more items

I would like recycling bins provided & combine all items.

I'd like to see a drive by location where we could drop off any amount of recyclable 
at anytime and not have to wait for the curbside date!

Add a way for those who do not have curbside recycling to recycle.  I'd rather stay 
in CS than drive to Bryan to recycle.

add a recycling center

more opportunities to recycle hazardous waste/larger electronics than twice a year 
- once a month or once every 2 months.

It would be nice to have a bin and to have more options of what to recycle.  It would 
be nicer if the recycle department would actually branch out and let apartments 
recycle.  I know it has failed in the past but the recycling department needs to get 
over what happened 8 years ago and move on and change their ways.  It works all 
over the world and College Station isn't as "backwards" as a lot of communities that 
know how to recycle.

No change other than adding more options

Not sure

I would like to place all recyclables in one bin by the curb weekly.

202



As stated in #15, I am statisfied with the program.

Increase the types of recyle material that is picked up.

I would like to see colored glass recycled and picked up.

I would get rid of the bags and let people use their own containers. I would accept 
more types of recyclables. I would consider making recycling mandatory, as it is in 
Wisconsin. Just for the record, I am a native Texan, but that doesn't mean I don't 
think we can't adopt other states' good ideas. There is simply no excuse not to 
recycle.

Adding other paper, cardboard and all recyclable plastics.

add paper to program.  waste quite a bit.  also cardboard boxes

Availablity of recycle programs to residents of apartment complexes

nothing

I would like to see the addition of additional items to recycle.  Everything that can 
be recycled should be recycled.  Having a single bin would be of great help.

more things added that could be recycled

you could use one container for everything (big box)and you wouldn't have to crush 
items. 

1.  accept more types of items

2.  communicate better with residents whenever there is a change in the list of 
acceptable items

All recycling items in one bin picked up on a weekly basis would be great.  They do 
this in San Antonio and it keeps down the clutter.  Accepting more items like green 
glass, cardboard, plastic bags.

would like to see colored plastic bottles added.


Crack down on people stealing the cans

I wish we could have the recycling program for hazardous was, computers, etc. 
held more often than twice a year.  

Single-bin collection, fewer restrictions on what can be put in.

Cover CS apartment complexes with the same type recycling that occurs in single-
family dwelling areas; advertise more about the recycling program; include green 
plastic and glass bottles, cardboard, and plastic bags in the items that can be 
recycled.

Same as Number 15

Expand to include more categories of plastics.  Reduce sorting requirements, 
particularly sorting glass by color.

More aggressive marketing and ongoing encouragement of the program, especially 
to college students every fall.  Recycling information can be included in their 
"student package" in an appealing format.  It is the houses leased to students 
where the garbage cans overflow with papers, cans and bottles ripe for recycling.

203



add more things to be recycled

Add cardboard

I would like some kind of cost effective system to hold the recycling bags - one for 
glass - one for plastic - one for paper.



I like totes - but realized that then items would not be sorted.


I would like corrugated cardboard added.  I often see garbage cans with cardboard 
boxes sticking out of them.

I answered that in the above information.

we have just moved here from Ca. There we had one large bin that took everything 
including cardboard, paper. I am not driving around town to get rid off these items. 
They mostly go into the trash then.

Add white and mixed paper to the program.

NOTHING

Allow newspapers to be recycled in used paper grocery bags.  Add white and 
mixed paper recycling, and corrugated cardboard.  Allow glass, cans, and plastics 
to be placed in reusable bins.  Do away with those plastic bags!

Figure out a way to get the apartment complexes (and college students) to recycle 
all their trash.  A few bags a week from middle class homes is nothing compared to 
40,000 students trashing the town.

I think the resident needs a complete list of what can be recycled.  This should be 
displayed or provided on a regular basis. 

add other types of paper

I would like to be able to recycle additional types of materials.

Nothing, just do more of it.

nothing

Nothing

Timely and reliable pickup of recycling bags.

More different types of items recycled.  See above.

I wish the program would recycle colored wine bottles and plastic bags.

Nothing as of now

add plastic bags

take green glass

Having to bag all of the like items separately makes for storage issues in our 
garage until we have have enough to warrant putting it out at the curb.  Being able 
to put all of it in one bin would really make things easier from our perspective, and 
might encourage more people to recycle.

204



get bins.

Add more items.  Encourage participation at apartment complexes and multi-family 
housing.

No changes

Would like to see more options for recycling available at curbside--i.e. additional 
plastics, paper, etc.

See previous comments

Stronger bags.  Stronger wire ties.  

Add to apartments.

pick up magazines, envelopes, computer paper

include all kind of housings in the program.

adding the things i commented in on question 15.

Not much. I think they do a great job. 

As a two-person family, it takes us several weeks to fill any one bag, which 
becomes quite smelly by week 4 or 5. If we could combine several types of items in 
one bag, we would be able to fill our bags more quickly and reduce the odor in our 
garage/house. Adding cardboard would also help.

Add paperboard to the curb-side program.  This is far and away the largest volume 
of easily recycled material that we have to throw away in our household.



Create a drive through facility in College Station.  If it's not available at the curb it 
should be more convenient for those who are willing to take material to a center to 
be recycled.



Take more yard waste to the compost facility.  The City of Bryan takes cans of yard 
waste from the curb to the facility.  All of the yard waste that we put at the curb (in 
the large paper sacks) ends up at the landfill.  It goes in the truck with the other 
bulk junk instead of going to the compost facility.  It's a shame.  Seems if Bryan can 
do it effectively, we can too.



The rule that does not allow cans at the curb on bulk day is silly.  Silly, silly, silly.  It 
forces me to add a plastic or paper bag to the land fill when a reusable can would 
to the job just fine.  Silly.  If folks abuse it, refuse it.  It's pretty easy for the guys on 
the ground to spot household garbage in a can instead of yard waste.



Our aluminum gets stolen regularly.  If there was a facility in College Station we 
would deliver it instead of putting it at the curb.


Provide bins (like the trash bins) to put recycle in instead of bags


Stop it.  Drop off centers more cost effective

I wish that green glass and cereal boxes type of cardboard was accepted.  I also 
wish we had single stream recycling, but will put up with sorting if that's all we have.

205



Try to get more businesses to participate. This would be possible with the addition 
of cardboard and office paper and perhaps a drop off spot in CS to take it. 

Leave it the way it is.

Everyone recycled where I lived in Florida. The city provided 3 bins for each 
household one each for plastic, aluminum and glass. This made it easier to recycle. 
College Station provides trash cans maybe it should invest in bins for recycling. 
The easier it is the more people will start recyling. 

I would make it more widely available. I would also put big bins by the banks or 
other places of business for recycling paper. Many cities that do that have great 
success with that program

More publicity!! Promote the program more!

Don't know...haven't used it due to lack of information and/or apartment complex.

More locations, better advertising so I know when pick up occurs and how to get 
involved.

weekly recycling of plastic grocery bags

add the items listed in 15

take cardboard, mixed paper

Recycle more items

I would like for shredded paper to be picked up.

First, issue tubs and do not require separation. Second, expand to green glass, 
colored plastic and cardboard.

1.promote the actual savings in your monthly winner annoucement

2.have a collection site for green waste that actually would be treated as green 
waste and not trash


We are not able to recycle cardboard with the curbside program.  I always see my 
neighbors throwing away their cardboard instead of taking it to the drive in facility.  I 
really think people would put the cardboard out if it was available.

more items to be collected curbside

Try adding some more items if possible.  

the plastic bags and do a bin that everything can go into...

no change

try to take more items.  Do away with the cash for trash program it doesn't seem 
like it makes people want to recycle since there is little chance to be selected

Nothing I can think of, although lumping everything together would be less effort for 
me.

Just increase the items that can be recycled.

-***everything in one bin***

-more items allowed - paper, additional plastic types, cardboard

206



I would really like to be able to recycle cardboard such as cereal boxes, TV dinner 
boxes, etc.  I'd also like to recycle everything that is recyclable (#5, #7, etc.)

Make it easier!  4 different bags is too difficult to deal with.  

Nothing I could think of at this time.

Add refrigerators

1. for you to recycle cardboard, also (I haul mine to the Bryan recycling center, 
which is inconvenient)

2. use something other than plastic bags (they are littering our landfill and take 
thousands of years to biodegrade (from my understanding)--we need to use plastic 
bins or some kind of heavy paper bags that will disintegrate in the landfill.

Would like the ability to order recycle bags online.

Would like to see a more progressive/informing role of the city in recycling and 
energy/water conservation. 

Pick-up of batteries, electronics and computers.

Visibility. I know virtually nothing about it.

Educate more residents to recycle through discounts on the sanitation fee. 

Not separating out glass.  Allowing all colors of glass.

Offer this service to duplexes and apartment complexes.  Student generate a ton of 
trash and they don't have an opportunity to recycle.  Many would if they could.

find some way to encourage students to recycle????

See above. 

Put all recyclables in one big bin at the curb. Find creative ways to accept brown 
bottles and solid-colored plastics. Find creative ways to actually RECYCLE plant 
waste and leaves instead of putting them in the landfill.

employ good looking, fit women wearing bikinis to do the job----just kidding.



can't think of anything else.

Have the program publicized more so that more people would participate.

I would like to have more items collected for recycling.  

First, I'd change the publicity or the marketing for this program.  Not many people 
are aware that it exists.  Then, I'd be sure and have recylcing bags available in local 
grocery stores, maybe near the checkout or near the water isle. You want to make 
using the bags very accessible.

add green glass, cardboard and colored plastics

I think you could save some money by having pickup every other week.  Make it 
more reliable.  People will quit doing it if they have to keep calling you. 

Nothing it works for me

Add more materials to the accepted list.

207



N/A

Have recycling bins instead of bags and just collect everything in one bin

Not aything

Add more items that can be curbside recycled: cardboard, paperboard, green 
glass, white &/or mixed computer paper, and telephone books.  

Make them available for more streets and make information more available for 
everyone to see rather than to look for it. 

Nothing

add plastic bags---I can take the bags to HEB or Walmart,but I forget them alot of 
times. Easier when it is curb side.

Add more categories.  In our former hometown, we cycled cardboard, mixed paper, 
green glass, for instance

i like the way it is conducted now.

I in College Station, but I do not get curbside service.  I would like to contribute to 
the curbside program.

In california residents are provided tiered poly-something for each of the 
commodies the city  recycles and the whole tier could be wheeled to the curb, 
much as our garbage cans. Of course, I know that be expensive and less efficent to 
the way it is handled by separate entities today.

maybe add more items to the program

skip Mondays that are holidays - should pick up Tuesday or Wednesday

expand service to more bottles and plastics 

Want it to accept more items.

Collect from plastic boxes the city provides in order to elimate generating more 
waste with the plastic bags we currently are provided.

Accepting the plastic grocery bags. I recycle them at HEB or Walmart, but 
sometimes forget to take them, so it would be more convenient if they were added 
to the curbside recycling. 

Recycle more plastics and cardboard!

Nothing

Add whatever materials could be added to recycle.

They do a great job

add more things that can be recycled like cardboard of all types and all colored 
glass and plastic

I would add paperboard.

Add paperboard, colored glass, and cardboard.  Add a "recycle can" just like trash 
can but different color.  Then all recyclables go into it.  Easier for the resident.

208



Required by residence in the apartment

I came from a community in Wisconsin that did collect the above mentioned items 
and my weekly garbage output was down to 1 bag a week!!

Everything in one bag would be nice

Include cardboard and paper

209



210


	Agenda
	Item No. 2 - National League of Cities Leadership Summit Report
	Coversheet
	Allan Wallis Article
	Peter Block Article

	Item No. 3 - Outside Agency Funding Policy Review
	Coversheet
	Executive Summary
	Proposed Policy

	Item No. 11.1 - Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with Texas A&M University System for a Temporary Air Quality Monitoring Station in Lick Creek Park
	cover sheet
	1 Amendment to ILA w TAMU System
	2 Location Map

	Item No. 11.2 - Approval of the 2006 Property Tax Roll
	Coversheet
	Final Roll Report

	Item No. 11.3 - Police Motorcycle Purchase
	Coversheet
	Bid Tabulation Sheet

	Item No. 11.4 - Minutes
	minutes

	Item No. 12.1 - Presentation of a Statement of Support for the Guard and Reserve
	cover sheet
	1 STATEMENT OF SUPPORT FOR THE GUARD AND RESERVE
	2 Memo from Julie O'Connell
	3 Current Members of the Guard and Reserve

	Item No. 12.2 - Partnership for Inclusive Communities
	Coversheet
	Resolution to Work Toward Inclusive Community

	Item No. 12.3 - General Obligation Bond Refunding
	Coversheet
	Ordinance

	Item No. 12.4 - Recycling Collection Program
	Coversheet
	Staff Analysis – White Paper Recycling Collection
	Recycling Survey Charts
	Recycling Survey Comments
	White Paper Collection Cost Quote


